Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Keystone Realtors Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Keystone Realtors
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associate companies,
jointly controlled entities and joint ventures (refer Note 59 to the consolidated financial
statements), which comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the consolidated financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group, its associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures as
at March 31, 2025, and consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and
other comprehensive loss), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Au diting (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Group, its associate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
awhole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key audit matter

(Refer Note 2C(a) and 34 to the

consolidated financial
statements)
In accordance with the

requirements of Ind AS 115
‘Revenue from contract with
customers’, revenue from sale of
residential units are recognised at
a point in time or over time based
on the contract entered with the
customers.

Significant judgement is required
in identifying the performance
obligations and determining
when ‘control’ of the residential
units is transferred to the
customer. Further, the Holding
Company  assesses  various
conditions included in the contact
with customer to identify whether
the Holding Company has
unconditional right to payment
for performance to date or not,
Based on this revenue is
recognised at point in time or over
time.

Considering the above-
mentioned factors, revenue
recognition has been considered
as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Revenue recognition from Contract with Customers '

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of revenue recognition includes following:

Read the Holding Company’s revenue recognition
accounting policies and assessed compliance with Ind
AS 115 ‘Revenue from contract with customers’.
Understood and evaluated the design and
implementation, and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Company’s intermnal financial
controls over revenue recognition.

Obtained and read the customer contracts on a
sample basis and evaluated the management
assessment with respect to satisfaction of
performance obligations at a point in time or over
time and that revenue is recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy.

Tested sales transaction during the year on a sample
basis, by examining the underlying customer
contracts and final demand letter evidencing the
transfer of control of the residential unit to the
customer along with occupation certificate based on
which revenue is recognised.

Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of
revenue-related disclosures in accordance with
applicable Indian Accounting Standards and
applicable financial reporting framework in the
consolidated financial statements.

Assessment of net realisable value (NRV) of inventories

(Refer Note 2C(h) and 12 to the Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of valuation of inventories at lower of cost and
NRV includes following:

consolidated financial statements)
The Holding Company’s inventory
is stated at the lower of cost and
NRYV. As at March 31, 2025, the

carrying  value of Holding
Company’s inventory is Rs.
119,178 Lakh.

NRV  determination  involves
estimates based on prevailing
market conditions, current prices,
the estimated future selling price,
cost to complete projects and
selling costs,

Considering the significance of the
carrying value of inventories in the

Read and evaluated the accounting policies with
respect to inventories.

Understood and evaluated the design and
implementation, and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over valuation of inventories,

Tested on a sample basis that inventories are held at
the lower of cost and NRV, by comparing cost of
inventory and estimated cost to complete the project
with corresponding selling price or the estimated
future selling price by reference to recent market
prices in the same projects or comparable properties,
net of selling cost.

QLT
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Key audit matter

consolidated financial statements
and the involvement of significant
estimation and judgement in
assessment of NRV, the same has
been considered as a key audit
matter.

Assessing impairment of Investments in and loans given to joint ventures,

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

* Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
inventory related disclosures in accordance with

applicable Indian Accounting Standards

applicable financial reporting framework in the

consolidated financial statements.

associates and other related parties

(Refer Note 7 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements)
As at March 31, 2025, the carrying
values of Holding Company’s
investment in joint ventures and
associates is amounting to Rs.
31,795 Lakh. Further, the Holding
Company has granted loans to its
joint ventures, associates and
other related parties amounting to
Rs. 7,779 Lakh as at March 31,
2025.

Management reviews regularly
whether there are any indicators of
impairment of the investments by
reference to the requirements
under Ind AS 36 “Impairment of

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of investments and loans in joint
ventures, associates and other related parties includes

following:

e Read and evaluated the accounting policies with

respect to impairment,
e Understood and evaluated the

of controls over the Company’s
impairment assessment,

process

o Tested samples of investment made and loans

granted by the Holding Company and assessed the
in whom the
investments were made or loans were granted by
audited financial

financial condition of entities

obtaining the most recent
statements of such entities.

design and
implementation, and testing operating effectiveness

Assets. For cases where
impairment indicators  exist,
management  estimates  the
recoverable amounts.

impairment loss is recognised if
the recoverable amount is lower
than the carrying value. The
recoverable amount is determined
based on the higher of value in use

and fair value less costs to sell.
In  respect of

its cash flow obligations,
Significant

assumptions used
determination  of

borrowers which

loans, the
management performs the credit
risk assessment for each loan by
assessing whether the borrower
has a financial capability to meet

judgements  are
required to determine the key

recoverable
amount or forecast cash flow of
includes
estimation of expected selling

* Performed inquiries with management on the project

status and tested future business plan of entities in
whom investments were made or to whom loans were
granted to evaluate their recoverability.

Assessed the appropriateness of the Holding
Company’s valuation methodology and model used to
determine the recoverable amount,

Tested reasonableness of assumptions such as
expected selling price, cost to complete the project
and discount rate based on current economic and

market conditions used for determining the
recoverable amount/financial  capability and
performed a sensitivity analysis over key

assumptions used in determining the recoverable
amount.

Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures made by the management in respect of
such investments and loans in joint ventures,
associates and other related parties in accordance
with applicable Indian Accounting Standards and
applicable financial reporting framework in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
price, cost to complete the project

and discount rate.

The assessment of the recoverable

amounts requires the use of

significant  judgements  and

estimates, and thus same has been

considered as a key audit matter.

Other Information

5,

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is respansible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including its associate
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, which have been used for the
purpase of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.
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7.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate companies, jointly controlled entities and
joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its assaciate
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Q.

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We are also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or eiror, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group and its associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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12.

13.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associate companies, jointly
controlled entities and joint ventures to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements, which have been andited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

14.

The financial statements of 54 subsidiaries and 2 jointly controlled entities reflect total assets
of Rs. 369,175 Lakh and net assets of Rs. (13,607) Lakh as at March 31, 2025, total revenue of
Rs. 134,227 Lakh, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive
loss) of Rs. 14,613 Lakh and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 5,139 Lakh for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consclidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group's share of loss of Rs 1 Lakh and total comprehensive loss
(comprising of loss and other comprehensive loss) of Rs. 1 Lakh for the year ended March 31,
2025 as considered in the consclidated financial statements, in respect of 2 associate
companies and 4 joint ventures whose financial statements have not been audited by us. The
financial statements of these subsidiaries, assaciate companies, jointly controlled entities and
joint ventures have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the Holding Company’s Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information
insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, associate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint ventures, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors and the
procedures performed by us.

L3
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO
2020"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section
143 of the Act, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks included by the
respective anditors in their CARO 2020 reports issued in respect of the standalone financial
statements of the companies which are included in these Consolidated Financial Statements,

16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters
stated in paragraph 16(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive loss), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies, its associate companies, jointly controlled entities and
joint ventures incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 16(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 16(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure A.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

#
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iii.

iv.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associate
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures— Refer Note 52 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group, its associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures
were not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable
law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable
losses on long-term contract. The Group, its associates, jointly controlled entities and
joint ventures did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, there were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint ventures incorporated in India,

(a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries,
associates companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been andited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associates
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint venture respectively that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 62(vii) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint venture to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate companies, jointly
controlled entities and joint ventures (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note
62(vii) to the consclidated financial statements).

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries,
associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures respectively that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 62(vii) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate companies, jointly controlled entities
and joint ventures from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint ventures shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 62(vii) to the consolidated
financial statements).
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17. The

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
andited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has
cansed us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement

As stated in note 61 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend

declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
declaration of dividend.

Rased on our examination, which included test checks and that perforimed by the
respective auditors of the subsidiaries, assaciate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Group, its associate
companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures have used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except in case of one of its accounting software
for certain transactions, for changes made through specific access and for direct
database changes. Further, during the course of our andit, other than instances
mentioned above, we and the respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries,
associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures did not notice any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, or not preserved as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

Group, its associate companies, jointly controlled entities and joint ventures have

paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements of Keystone Realtors Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, its associate companies, jointly controlled
entities and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date, Reporting
under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to 3 subsidiary
companies, 2 associates, 2 jointly controlled entities and 1 Joint venture incorporated in India
namely (Refer Annexure I), pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated June 13, 2017.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its
associate companies and joint ventures, to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operaling effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, inel uding adherence to the respective company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed
to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
and both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.
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5. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the andit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our andit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal
financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purpaoses in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associates and joint
ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal cantrol over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL
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Other Matters

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as
it relates to 51 subsidiary companies and 4 joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in
India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

e

L
(A o

Pank andelia

Partner

Membership Number: 102022
UDIN: 25102022BMOKWJ2886

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025
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Annexure I

Subsidiaries
L. Kapstar Realty LLP
2. Rebus Realtors LLP
3. Premium Build Tech LLP (Consolidated with 'Evershine Premium Buildtech Joint Venture'
and 'Oriental Real Estate LLP")

Associates
1. Megacorp Constructions LLP
2. Krishika Developers Private Limited

Joint Ventures
1. Jyotirling Constructions Private Limited

Jointly Controlled Entities
1. Lok Fortune Joint Venture
2. Rustomjee Evershine Joint Venture



Keystone Realtors Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current asscls
Property, plant and equipient 3 2,486 1,218
Right-of-use assels 4 2,380 LE70
Investment properties 5 840 a8
Gowdwdll [ 31,824 31,824
Other intangible aoscs 6 1 1
Investinents acconnted for using the equity method 7 31,795 45,022
Financial assets
L Investiments 8 15,806 10,150
il. Other financlal assets 9 1,720 1,056
Critrent tag sssets (net) 10 6,560 8,980
Deferied tax asts (net) 43h) 5,205 4,914
Ot her non-current zsels 11 1.653 8gs
Total non-current assets 100,360 97,451
Current assels
Inventories 12 386,054 371,M25
Financial assets
i. Iivestimnients 13 Roo akz
ii. Trade receivahles 14 8,345 10,477
iii, Cash and cash E‘lilli\rﬂ:z‘ﬁ:& 15 63.754 22,004
iv. Bank balances ather than (1) shave 16 an,84ag 12,648
v. Loang 17 15.853 11,087
vi, Other financial assets 18 25,316 32,297
Current tax asets (net) 19 1,248 £
Other currenl assels 20 42.379 37,799
Total current assets 564,584 499,714
Tolal asscts 66&944 597,165
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity shate capital 21(3) 12,603 11,389
Other equity
Reserves and surplig 21(b) 264.590 168,387
Tolal equity attributable to owners of the parent 277,199 179,776
Nom-controlling inferests 1,260 (258)
Tolal equity 278,459 179,418
LIABILITIES
Non-current liahilities
Financial liahilities
i Borrowings =53 25,869 60,930
ii. Leasz Habililies 23 2,055 1,377
iii. Trade payahles 24
a) Total outstanding dues of micrs 2nd small enterpiises = =
b) Tatal oulstanding dues of ereditors olher than (il a) above £56 185
iv. Other financial lahilities 25 17,336 17,645
Deferred tax liabilities 43(hi(h) 6,108 3,087
Pruvisions 26 435 251
Tolal non-current liabilities 52,479 84,375
Current liabilities
Financial lahilities
i. Burtowings 27 64,579 47.557
ii. Lease liabilities 28 544 273
iil. Trade payahles 5
a) Total ont=tanding dues of micro and small enterprises 906 920
b) Tutal oulstanding dues of creditors ather than (1i)(2) above 78,166 63,296
iv, Other financial liahiiities 30 18,114 22 R84
Provisions 31 1,729 1,391
Current tax liahililies (net) 3z 1,020 608
Other current liahilities 33 168,858 196,437
Total current liabilities 334,006 333.372
Tolal liahilities 386,485 417,747
Total equity and liahilities 664,044 597,165




Keystone Realtors Limited
Consoclidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

The above consolidaled balance sheet should be read in o mjunction with accompanying notes.

This is the Consolidated Balance sheet referred to in our report of even date,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016 Keystone Realtors Limited

B}bu = : L45200MH1905PLCOg4208

f i; o - oﬁ”' a3 2
Panka andelia ustom Irani Chandresh ta

Partner Director
Membership No.: 102022 DIN: 00057575

Bim SM

hief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 11578

Mumbai Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025 Date: May 14, 2025



Keystone Realtors Limited

Consolidated Siatement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the Year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income

Revenne from operations 34 200,410 222,225

Other ineome 15 11,734 5,918

Total inecome 212,144 227,563

Expenses

Comstruetion costs 36 157,369 106,308

Purchase of stock-in-trade 37 2,316 534

Changesin invenluries of completed saleahle unils, construction work- in- 38 (15,049) 79,398

progress and stock-in-trade

Employee benelit expense 39 13,038 9,779

Depreciation and amortisation expense 40 1,324 731

Finance costs 41 5,148 4,008

Other expenses 42 21,207 15,192

Total expenses 185,353 216,010

Profit before share of (Inss) / profit of associates and joint ventures 26,791 11,553

and tax

Share of (loss)/profit of associales and joint veulure acconnted for using the (1,003) 2,843

equity method (net of taxes)

Profit before tax 25,698 14,446

Income tax expense 43

- Curzent tax 4,845 2,766

-Tax paid in respect of earlier Years 165 i

- Deferred tax 1,875 577
Total tax expense 6,885 3.343
Profit after tax for the year 18,813 11,103
Other comprehensive loss
Ttenis that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remessurements of post-employment benefit obligations (210) (103)

Share of other comprehensive income of joint vealures and associates (13) (11)

accounted for using the equity method (net of taxes)

Income tax relating to ahove ileins 45 19
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (a78) (95)
Total comprehensive income for the year 18,635 11,008
Profit/(loss) for the year is attributable to :

Owners of the parent 17,106 11,221

Nom conlrolling interest 1.617 (118)

18,813 11,103
Other comprehensive loss for the year is attributable to :
Owners of the parent {176) (94)
Non controlling interest (2) (1)
(178) (95)
Tolal comprehensive income/(loss) for the year is attributable to :
Owners of the parent 17,020 11,127
Non eounlrolling interest 1,615 (119)
18,635 11,008
Earnings per share (face value of Rs. 10 each attributable to the owners of
parent (in INR))
Basic earnings per share 51 13.85 9 85
Diluted earnings per share 51 13.71 9.82

The above consolidated statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with ace mpanying notes




Keystone Realtors Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016

a_g_)l:n'
oo™
iy

Pankaj Khandelia
Partner
Membership No.: 102022

Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Keystone Realtors Limited
CIN: L45200MH1995PLC094208

y!

Rustom Irani Chandresh Mehta
ing Director Director

ajal Gupta
hief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 11578
Mumbai

Date: May 14, zo25



Keystone Realtors Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the Year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flows from operating activities .
Profit befire tax 25,008 14,446 -
Adjustinents for .
Share of profit/floss) of acsoctates and joint venlure aecounted for tsing the equity method (net
of Laxes) 1,093 _(2;8au3)
Depreciation and amartisation 1,373 786
Finance costs 12,322 10,569
Reversal for fureseeable Toss - (446)
Imipairment Joss on financial zeets 982 . ]
Unwinding of finaneial inst rument [1,028) (621)
Interest and dividend income elussified as investing cash flows (5.430) {2.575)
Interest onincome tax refund (670) -
Rental Ineaime (87) (106)
(Gain)f Loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loes (1,384) 149
Employee stock gption expense 1,592 945
Liability written hack (2,402) -
Losz allowance on financial assets 142 274
Operating profit before working capital changes 32,192 19,558
Chaiiges in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrense in invent ories (12,145) 80,043
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables 1,524 (4.313)
Increase in other financial assets (497) (1.934)
Inerease in other assets (5,694) (4.949)
Increase in trade payahles 17,711 14, B2
Decr cin other non current firancial Habilin S (1,471) (1,952)
(Devresse)/ Incrense in other current ranc s liahilities (787) 10,435
Inercase in Pravision 363 360
Deercase in Other current Habilities (27,579) (89,796)
Cash generated from operations 3,017 22,353
Taxes paid (net of refunde) (4,156) (4.012)
Net cash (used in)/generated fron: operating activities (1,139) 18,341
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Loan repaid during the year 1,575 14,729
Loan given during the year (6,347 (8,250}
Payment for purchase of Propetty, plant and equ ipinent (1.030) (164)
Payrent far purchase of Tnvestiments (5.143) (7.970)
Considecatinn paid on acquisition of subsidiary net of cash acquired (4,000) (14,825
Puyinents lowards acquired receivables - (22,600)
Proceeds from ac quired receivables 6,086 4,750
Investmient tade in joint venture (34) -
Cash taken over pursuant to scherme of amalgamation ~ 4
Proceeds from sale [ redemption of Investments 1110 285
Bank deposits placed (73.326) {40,400)
Bank deposite malured 68,570 33.351
Net increase in other current hank balanees {other than bank depusits) (1,232) (1,515)
Interest and dividend received 7,183 8,179
Rental invoime recelved 87 100
Net cash flow used in investing activities (6,491) (27,751)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Equity shares fssied (inclodes share application money) B0 081 52
Shate issue cxpenses paid (1,713) =
Trarsselions with non-controlling interest 3 %
Proceeds fram horrowings 36,292 80,821
Repayment of lease liabilities (including interest) (Ru8) (389)
Repayment of borrowings (57.359) (74,950)
Finance costs paid (B106) (9.334)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) financing activities 48,350 (3,830)
Net (decrease) [ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 40,760 (13,240)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning af the year 22,004 36,234
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6@ 22,994




Keystone Realtors Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Non-cash financing and investing activities

For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 1,480 1,375
Amalgamation of Toccata Realtors Private Limited (Refer note 55)
- Reduction in Investments 20,473
- Reduetion in loans - 12,019
- Reduction in borrowings i 31,001
- Net impact of acquisition of NCI = 1,397

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following: (refer note 15)

Cash on hand 79 77
Cheques on hand 7,309 B
Balances with banks in current accounts 9,047 11,538
Deposit with maturity of less than 3 months 47,319 11,379
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 63,754 22,994
Also refer note 50 for non-cash financing activities
The above consolidated stalement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes,
This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registralion No. 012754N/N500016 Keystone Realtors Limited
Chartered Arcountants N: L45200MH1905PLC0g.1208
g A s

wag

Pankaj Khandelia Chandresh Mehta

Partner
Membership No.: 102022

Director

ajal Gupta
ief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 1157
Mumibai Mumbhai

Date: May 14, 2025 Date: May 14, 2025
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Keystone Realtars Limited
Notes to the eonsolidated financial statements as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 1: Background of the Group

Keystone Reallors Limited ('the Company’) is & public limited Compaay. Tt is incorporsted and domiciled in Indiz snd has it regidered
office at 702, Natraj, MV Road Junctivn, Andberi East, Mumbai 400 060,

The Company is incorporated sinee November 6, 1995 and is engaged primarily in the business of real estyle comstruetions,
development and ather related activities in India,

The Company together with its subsidiaries is hereinafler refeced to as the 'Group’ (Refer note 50). These consolidated financial
stutemients were approved for [ssue by the Board of Directors on May 14, 2025,

Note 2A: Basis of preparation
(i) Camplionce with Ind AS

The comsolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Tndian Acconding Standards (Tnd AS) noiified nnider
Sectinn 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Aet) [Companies (Todian Accounting Standards) Rulee, 2015], as amended from time to
time and other relevant provisions of the Ast.

(1) Historical eost eanvention

The consolidated financial staterents have been prepared on a historical cost Basis, ex ept fon the fallowing:
+ cerlain financial nssets and financial liebilities are measured at fBir value;

+ defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

+defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

» share hosed paymaent measurad at fair velue:

tm) Currenl - pom current classification

All assets and labifilies have been classified a5 current or non-current as per the Group's aperaling cvcle and other eriteria sel out in the
Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of business and the time belwesn the acipisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained itz operating cycle as 4 years for the purpess of currenl -
nom-curtent classification of assets and Habilities relating to angoing projects, Operating cycle for all ofher purpose including o« inpleted
projects is based om 12 months peried.

Note 2B: Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(1) Subsidiaries

Bubsidinrias are all entilies wver whick the Gronp has control. The Group cantrols an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
te, variahle refurns from its involvement with the entity znd has the sbllity to affect thosa returns through its power to dirsct the
relevant activitiez of the entity. Subsidiarias are fally consolidated from the dute on which control is transferred to the Groug, They ae
deconsolidated from the date that contral ceases.

The aeqguisition method of accounting iz used to account for business combinations by the Group,

The Group ¢ombines the finaucial stalements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adiding together like ilems of sssets,
liabilities, equily, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised pains on transactions Letwesn Growp
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impainment of the
transferred aseel. Accounting polivies of subsidiaries have besn changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the polivies
adopied by the Group,

Noo-contralling interests in the tesults and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss,
consolidated statement of changes in squity and consolidated stalement of assets and liabilites respectively,

(i) Associates

Associales are all enfifies over which the Group has significant influence but not control or juint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds belweea 20% and 50% of the voling rights. Investments in associales are accounted for using the equity method of
aceounting (see (iv]) below), after initially being recognised at cost,

L) Foint arrangerments

Under Ind AS 111 Juint Arrangements, investments in jolnt arrangements are classified as sither joint operations or joint venlures, The
classification depends on the contractual rights and ebligations of cach investor, rather than the legal structure af the joint arrangement,
The Group bas bath joint ventures snd joint aperstions.

Joint cpecations

The Group recognises its direct right to the assers, Habilities, revenoes and expenses of juint operstions and ile share of any juintly held
or incurred assets, liabilities, revenves and expenses. Those have been incorporated in the financial stalements in the appropriate
headings.

Joint ventures

Inlerests in joint venlures are aceounted for using the equity method (see (iv) below), afier inilially being recognised at rost in the
consolidated statement of assels and liabilities,




Keystone Reallors Limited

Noles to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless stherwise stated)

(iv) Frguity methad

Under the equity methad of accounting, the fuvestments are initially rece gnised at easl and adjusted therealler to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or Josses of the fnvestes in profit and loss, and the Group's share of other comprelensive ineome of
the investee in other comprebensive income. Dividends reseived ar recsivabls from assowviates and joint ventures are Terognised as a
raduction in the carrying amount of the invesimant,

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted fnvestment equals or =xceeds its jnlerest in the entiiy, including any other

wnsecured Jong-term receivables, the Group does ot recegnise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made paymenls on
behall of the sther entity,

Unrealised gaing on transactions between the Group and its associales and Jeint ventuces are ellminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these eniitles, Unrealised losses are alst eliminated nnless the transaction provides evidence of an impaimient of the a:at

transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensire consistency with the
poiiiies 3o pted by the Group,

The carrying amount of equily accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordanes with the poliey deseribad in note (i)
heliw,

(v] Changes in awnership nterests

The Grunp treals transactions with nen-controlling interests that do nat result in 2 Wiss af control as tramsaclinns with equily gwners af
the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustinent between the carrying amounts of the eontrolling and non-continlling
intereste to reflect their relative interests in the subsidizry, Any difference between the amount of the aljnstinent to novi-conlinfling
interzsle and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the Group ceases to consalidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint eontrol or significant
influesce, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fuir value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. This fair value becomes the initial earrving amount for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained inler=st as an
assoclate, joint veolure or financial asset. In addition, any amount previously recognised in other eamprehensive ineome in respeet of
that enlily is accounted for as if the Group bad directly disposed of the related assels or lishilities, This may mean that amounis
previously recugnised in other comprehensive income ara reclassified o profit or loss,

If the swnership interest in a joint venlure or an associste is reduced but Juint control or significant influence is retainad, ouly a
proportionate share of the amounts previowsly recognised in other comprehensive income are reclessified to profit or loss where
appropriate,

Nole 2C: Material Aceounting Policies
(a) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when eonirol of the goods or services are transferrzd to the cuclomer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group evpacts to be enlitled in exchange for those goods or services, Revenue is
measured based on the transaction price, which is the considerstion, aljusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as sperified in the
contracl with the customer. The Group presenls revenve from conlracts with customers net of indineel taxes in s Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group assesses ite revenue artangsments against specific crileria to delermine if it is acting as
principal or agent, The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in 211 of its revenue arTangement

Income from Property development

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the coniract that are separate performance obligalions to which a portion of
the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Group considers the effects of variahle
ennsideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration pasable to the costomer (if
any),

The Group satisRes a performance ohligation and recognise the revenu over the time if the Group's performance does ot creste an
ssset with an allernstive use to the Group and the entily has an enforceshle right to payment for performance complet=d to date hasis
the agreerient entered with customers, otherwise revenue is recognized point in time. The revenne from real estale development of
residential nnit is t=cognised at the point in time, when the control of the saset is transferred to the custrmer and the perfinnance
obligation is satisfed {2 on transfer of legal title of the residential unit, receipt of accupation certificate and final demand Ielier issuad tg
the customers which generally oceurs on complelion of profect.

The Group breomes entitled ta involce customers for eonstruction of residential and commercial propertics based on schieving a series
of eonstruetinn-linked milestones. When the Group satisfies a perfarmance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it
creates a contract sesel based on the amount of consideration sarned by the performance. Any amount previously recognised as a
eontract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point when the Group has the right to consideration that is unconditional, Ifa
customer pays consideration before the Group trenafers goods or services to the custamer, a conlract liability is recogrised when the
payroent is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract Habilities are recognised as revenue when the Group purforms
under the comtract,

The Grous recognizes incremental costs for shlaining a conlract s an asset and such cosls are charged ta the Cansnlidaied Stateiment of
Profit and Loss when ievenue is resognised for the said contract.
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Noies to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All arionats in TR lakhs, unless otherwice stated)

(b) Inenme tax

The fneoms tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payalile on the current pericd's towsble income hased an the apidicable
inenme tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and Kabilities atiribotable to te mparary differences and to uncsed tax hocees,

(i) Current inevime Lax

The current incame tax charge is caboulated on the hasis of the tax laws enscled ar sihstantively enacled at the end of the reporting
perind. The provision for currenl tax is made at the rale of tax as applicable for the income of the previons year as defined under the
Tnevimie Tax Act, 1661, .

Managemant periodivally evaluates posilions taken in {ax reiums with respect to situations in which applichle tax regubnlim is subject
te interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriste on the basis of smounts expected to be paid to the tax antharities,

Current Llax assels and tax liabilities are offset where the entily has & logally enfrcsable right to offset and intends sither to selile on o
net basis, or to reslize the asset and setile the Hability stm ultaneously,

(1) Delevred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the ability methad, on temporry differences arising between the tor hases of assets and
tiabilities and their carrying amounts 28 per consolidated financial slatements as at the reparting date, Deferred income tax is also not
svoannted for i it arises from inltial recognition of an asset or Hability in a transaction other than a besiness combinats n that at the
time of the transaction affects neither account ing profit nor taxable profit (ax loss),

Defierred fnevune tax is determined nsing tax rates (and laws) that kave been anacted or substantially nacted by the end of the regueti ng
period and are eapected 10 apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred fne wiie tax Hability is settled,

Ceferred tax casels are reongnised to the extent that it is provable that finnre taxile fneome will be available apainst whick the
deductible tem porsry differenves, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unised tax credits could be utilis= 1,
The ca:rying ainonst of deferred tax assets iz reviewed ot each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 6o Yonger protuhle thut
suffivient taxahle profit wili be aveilshle to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be ntilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-ussessed at cach reporting 2ate and are recognised to the extent that it has become probsble that fuluce tasidile profits wilt allow the
Jeferred tax assels to ba recovered,

Duferred trx aseets are noi recognised for tempersty diffitences between the carTying amouat Aod tax pases of investuents in
snbsidiadies, joint ventures snd associates where it is not probable that the differences will Teverse in the foresceable Pature £pd taxable
profit will et be aviilable sgainst swhick the temparary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax Yiabilites are not recognised for temporary differences belween the carrying amount and Lt baces of Investmenis in
subsidiarizs, ivint venlures ang associstes where the Groug is able to control the timing of the reversal of the tenparary Siferances and
itis probaile that the differences will net reverse in the foresecalile filure.

Dieferred tax assets and liahilities are offeet when there is a lzgally enforceable right to offset current tax swiets 2nd lalilities and whera
the deferred tax balances relale to the same taxation suthority.

Cucrent and defirred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the sxtent that it relales to ftems recognissd in etber comprohensive
income or direrily in equily. In this case, the tax is alse recognived in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

colively,
(c) Leases

Asalessce

Assels and liabilities arising from a lease are inftially measursd on a present value basis. Lease Hahilities include the nel presenl velne of
the fixed pavments {including in-substance fived paymients), less any lease incentives receivable. The lesss paymenls arz disconnted
using the inlerest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannol be readily determined, which is generally the cose for leases in the Graup,
the Jessee's increraental borrowing tale is usad, being the rate that the individaal lesses would have to pay Lo barrow the funds pececary
lo obtain an aseel of stmilur value to the right of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, securily and
conditions,

To determine the incremental bortowing rate, the Groug uses recent third-party Bnanving tecelved by the individual lecses 25 2 starting
point, atjustad 1o reflest changas in financing conditions since thicd party financing was recelved, ! '
Lease payments are allocated hetween prineipal and finance cosl. The finance cost is charged to profit or Jnes over the loass peiind so 28
to produce a sonstant pesiodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Babillly for esch perind.

Right-of-use 2ssets are measured at cost comprising the following:

= the amcunt of the injtial messnrement of lease Hability I

» any izase payments made st or befors the commencement date less any incentives reveived
» any inftial direct costs, 2nd

= resliration cos's,

Right-nf-use assels are generally depraciatad over the shorter of the assel's useful life and the lease term on 2 straight-line bacls. If the
Group is reasunally certain to exeicise 2 purehase oplion, the right-of-use zssel is depreciated aver the onderlying s sct's ussiul lita,
Faymetts gesocinied sith short torm beases of equipment and all leases of low valuc sssels are recognised on a Straight-linz barie =s 1
erpense in profit or Inss. Short-term lewses are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. i d

Asalsscor
Leaze invme fram éperating jeases where the Group is a leseor is recognised in income on a shieight-line basiz oves tha lossa texm,
Initial drect costs weurred obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying smount of the underlying aseel and recogoized as
expense ovar the jease term on the same basis as leasa income, The respective leased assets are included in the halancs sheel based on
their malure.
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HNotes to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the March 31, 2025
{Ali amonnts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Busincss Combination
The acquisition method of scronnting s used to sccount for all business combinations except comimon control, regantle s of wheihar
equity instruments o other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisiiion of @ business compriees the

« fair valucs of the assets transferred;

« liabitities fncurred to the former pwners of the acauired business;

» equily interests Laued by the Group: and

= fair value of any asset or Hability resulting from a o wlingent comsideration arrangemeant.

Ientifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities sssumed in @ business combinatinn are, with lmited evweptions,
measured initially at their fuir values at the acquisition date. The Gruup recognises any non-contralling interest in the acinired enlity an
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis gither at fair value or at the non-rontrolling interest's proportionate share of the avguired enlily’s
net identifiable aesete

Acquisition-related 2otz ate expensed as incurrad,

The excess of the

e ronsideration transferred;

« amount of any non-zontralling intersst in the acquired entity, and

= acguisition-date fair value of any previous equity inlerest in the acquired entity

wver the fair value of the net identifiahle asscls sequired is recorded as goodwill. If those amaonts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable ansets of the business scyuired, the difference is recognised in olher comprehensive income and sccumulaled in aquily as
capital reserve provided there iz dear evidence of the underlving reasons for classifing the business combinating as a burgain purcliase,
In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is tecognised directly In equity as zapital reserve,

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deforred, the amounts payalle in the fiture are discounted to their pro eal valie
28 at the date of exchunge, The discouat rate used is the entity's incremental botiowing rale, biing the ralz at which a «f rilar horrs, dng
cenld be obtained from 2n independent Bnancier nnder somparable terms and conditions,

if the business can bisstion is schieved in stages, the acquisition date carnying velus of the acquirer's peevisusly held equity inierest in
the acquirse is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, Any gains or lossez arising from such remcasuremen. ave re-ognised in
profitorloss or cther comprebensive incame, ag appropriate,

Busineis combinstion betwaen entilies undar common cortrol is accounted using pooling of interest method of aseount ing, Under
pooling of fwwrest method of accounting, assets and liabiliies of eambining enlities are reflected at corrAng amount 2ad no
adjustiments ars mads to refect fuir values, or recognize any new sssels and labiitties, The ooly adjustmonts zre made to karmonise
acceunting policies, The difference batween the amount recorded ag share capital plus any additional coasideration in the form of c2o))
or other assets and amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capilal reserve and is presenied senarately from ofher
eapilal reserves.

(e) Impairment of non-financial sssets

Guodwill and intengible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not suhiject to amortisation and are testd annually for invpai cnent,
or mare frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tesied for impairment
whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicale that the carrying amount may nol be recoverahle. An imoaimioat lass s
tecognised for the amount by which the assel's carrying amount exceeds its recoverahle amount. The recoverabla amovut *s the higher
of an assel's [air value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairmient, assets are Grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately idenfifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows fram ciher sssels or
Groups af assels{eash-generating units). Non-financial assels other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed far poes Thle
reversal of the lnpairment at the end of each reporting perind.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Fur the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents inclades cash on hand, deposiis
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with original malurities of three months or Jess that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are sulject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value, Bank overdralts are
shewn within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statemient of assels and liahiiilios

(g) Trade receivahles

Trade receivables aze amounts due from cusiomers for goods sold or servicss perfurmad in tha ordinary conrse of business. Trale
receivables aze rerognised inilially at the tranzaction price 25 they do not sontain significant financing eotnponenis. The Sroup 2ol the
tracde receivables with the ohiective of collecting the contractuel cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amartised cost
weirg the efiective mlsrest method, lass joss sllowence, - -




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the cansolidated financial statements as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All am-unts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(h) Inventories

Inventories are valied g nndes

(i) Inventory of completed saleable nnils and Construction work-in-progress !

The invenlory is valued at lower of eost ar net realisalle value, Cast includas cost of land, development rights, rare-s"and'lu--c,
eanstruction eosis, horrowing ensts, other direel expenditure, and appropriale proportion of varfable and fixed uverhead expenditire,

the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating ¢ npacity. Cnst of inventories also inelude all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventaries o their present location and condition.

Net realisable valve is the estimated selling price in the ardinaty conrse of busin=ss less the extimatad coste of crmpletion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

i) Construction muterinla
The construction malerials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable valie, Cost of constmetion material o wnpirises cost of purchases

on meving weighied average basis. Costs of inventory includes rates and taxes and other direct expendiluce are delermined after
deducting rebates and discounts,

(i) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any coniract that gives rise to a financial assel of one euntity and a financial liahility or equity instriment of
annther entity,

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Gronp becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the instoment.

Financial asscls:
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

= thime to be measnred subscquently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
» thise to be measured at amortised cast

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the Snancial assets and the contractual lerms of the cash fl ws,

For asscts measursd at fair velue, gaing and losses will either be tevarded in profit or luss ar other eom prehensive income. For
investments in equity instraments that are not held for tradiog, this will depend on whether the Group has made an imevocahle electinn
et the time of initial recognilion to account for the equity investment at FVOCL

Initial recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and zales of financial assels are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Gy oup comuits to purchase ar
sale ths finencial assel. Financial assets are recognisad hiitially at fair value plus {excluding trade receivables which do nat conlzin a
significant financing component), in the case of Snancial assets not peeorded at fair volue thi wigh profit or loss, transaction costs that
are allribuiable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial sesels carried at fair valoe throngh profit ar loss
are expensed off {n profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amartised cosl, fair value through other compreliensive income (FVOCL) or fair value
through profit or less (FVIPLY) till de-reengnition on the basis of (i) the entity’s businesz made] for managing the fnancial assets and
{11} the comtractual cash Bow characteristics of the fnancial 2ssel.

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for eollection of contractual cash Bows where those cash flows Tepresent solely pavments of principal and inlerest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or Joss on a delt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or lnss when the asset is derecogniced or impaired. Interesl income from these financial
acsots i5 included in other income using the effective inlerest tate method,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that ars held for eallection of enntractual cash Guws and for selling the financial assete, where the assets’ cash Bows represent
solely payments of principal and inlerest, ave measured at FVOCT. Movements in the carryving smount are taken through OCI, excepl for
the recognition of impalrment galns or Insses, interest revenue and foreiga exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and
Inse, When the finsncial assel iz derecognised, the cumulstive gain ar Ines previously tecognised in OCI is reclassified from equily to
profit or laes and reecgnised in cther income/ (@xpenses). Inlercst income from these financial assets is ineluded in other feome using
the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or Inss (FVTPL):

Assets that do pol meel the erileria for amantised cost or FVOCT are measured at FVIPL. A gain or lose on a deht investment that is
snhsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss iz recognised in profit or 1oss in the period in which it arises, Tnterest incoma
from these financial assels are recognised in other incoma.

Eguity instrame:ts

All equily imvestments in scope of Ind A8 169 are measured at fair value. Equity Instruments which are held for trading are classified as
at FVTPL. For all ather equity insituments, the Groug decides to clussify the same either as at fair value through other comprahensive
deorne (FVTOOT) or FYVTEL.

The Croupg moakes such eloction on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The cassification is made on inilial recognition and is
irrevocahble,




Keyslone Reallors Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial staterients as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless ctkerwise stated)

1f the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCT, then all faic velue changes on the instrument, excluding 3 ddends,
are tecoghised in other comprehensive income (OCT), Thers is no recycling of the amounts from OCT to profit and Joss, ey 2n on sale of
such investments,

Equity instturients included within the FYTPL category are measused at lair value with all changes recognised in the consolidaled
siatement of profit and Joss,

Impairment of financial assels

The Group assesses on a forward Inuking basiz the expected credit lnsses associated with its arsets carried at amortised eosl, The
impaimment methodology applied depends on whether there haz been a significant increass in eredit risk

Derccognition of financial assets:
A financial asset iz derecognized only when:
* the Gronp has transferrad the rights to receive cash flows from the financil assetor

* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash fiows of the Fnancial assel, but assummes @ contractual obligation to pay the cash floss
Lo one OF More Tecipienls,

Where the enlity bas Lansforred an seect, the Group evaluates whether it has ransferred substantially all risks and rewands of
ownership of the financial assel, In sueh coses, the financial asset is deree sgnised. Where the entity has nol transferred snbstan ially all
Tisks and rewards of swnership of the financial assel, the fnancial asset is not derec ghised,

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor relafns subst aniially all risks and rewards of ownership of the finaneial
auset, the financial assel is derecognized if the Group has not retsined contral of the financial assel, Where the Group retains conirol of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of cont] nuing involvement in the financial 2esel,

Income recognition

Inlerest income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost is caleulated using the effective interest tale method and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss as part of other income.

Intersst income is caleulated by applying the effective interest rale to the gross carTying amount of financial assel excepl for financial

assets that subsequently became eredit-impaired. For credit-impairad financial assets the effective rate is applied to the pel earrying
amaunt of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance)

Dividead jncimma -
Dividends are recsived from financial assets at FVTPL and at FVOCL Divideads are recognized as other ineome in profit or Joss when
the right to receive payment is estallished. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
Iepresents 2 tecovery part of the cost of the investment.

Other ineome
All other incomes are acconnted on acoraal basls when ne rignificant uncertainty exists regarding the amount that will be received,

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial iobilfiies are initially measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a fmancial liahility noL at faic value the ough profit
or luss, transaction eosts that are directly attributable to the issua/ ariginalion of the financial Halility.

Suhseguent measurement

Financial Habilities are classified s measured at amortised cost or FVIEL, A financial liahilily is classified as at FVTPL if it is clussified
as held for trading, or it is a derivalive or it is designated ae such on Tnitial recogaiiion, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair valoe and changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and Joss, except for credit risk relaling to that
liability which is recognised in sther comprehensive income . Other financial liahilities are subssquently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methad. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and lnsses are recognised in the conselidated
statement of profit snd loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is slso recognised in the consalidated stalement of profit and lo-s,

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the ohligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offselting finarcial instruments

Financial assets and labilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of assets and liahilitios where
thers is a legally enforceahle right to offset the recngnised amounts and there is an intention to sel(le on a nel basis or realise the assct
and sefile the liability simultanecusly, The legally enforcealle right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course ofbusiness and in the event of default, insalvency or hankrupley of the Group or the counlerparty.
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Notes to the consoiidated financial statements as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All amonnts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Nems of property, plonl and equipment are stated at historical cost less aceumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost
eomprises of the purchase price including import duties and non-refundable taves snd directly attributahle expenses ineurred to bring
the asset to the Joration and condition necessary for it to be capahle of being aperated in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent coste are inclnded in the ssset's carmying amount or recognised a0 a separate asscl, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that futire <conomie benefits associaled with the ftem will Gow to the Group ond the cost of the item can be mcasured reliahbly, The
carrying amount of any component aconunted for as o separate aceed is derecognised when replaced, All other repairs and maintenance
are chorged to profit orloss diing the reporting period in which they are incurred,

Deprecialion methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Deprecistion is ralealated uidng the wiltten duwn value method (except for office improvements & boilding which are being depreciated
on stiaight line methad), to allocats their cost, net of residual values, gver the estimatad usefil lives of the nsscts. The estimated usefl
lives is in accordance with the Schedule T to the Companies Aet, 2013, sxe=pt in cas= of planl and machinery which is hused on
technical evaluation done by the management's sxpert, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values aze nol more
than 5% of the original cost of the seect, The 2sects’ residual volues and nsefid lives are reviswsd, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting peviod.

The management extimales the useful life for the property, plant 2nd equipment as follows:

Asset Useful Life
Plant and riachinery 6 years
Offive equipment 5 years
Offive improvements 5years
Furnitore 2nd Gaiuras 10 years
Commipnilers g years
Vehicles B years

Gains and losses on dispossl are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within
otherincome [ other expenses,

Lewschold improvements are depieciated over the shorter of their uecful life or the lease term, unless the eniity expects to use the asacts
beynnd the leass term,

(k) Investment properties

Properties that are held [or long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is ool oecupied by the Group, are
clussified as {mvestment properiss. Investmeal properties are measured initially at its cost, including relaled Leansaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the assel's carrying amount only when it is prohahle that
fulnre economic benefits associated with the sxpendiiore will fuw to the Group and the cost of the ilem can be mesured reliahly. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When parl of an investmenl property is replaced, the carrying amount
of the repliced part is derecogniod,

Investment propertizs are deprecisled ueing the straight-line method over their sstimated usefil Lves, Investment properties generally
bave 8 useful life of 60 years (other than ROC striclure 3o years).

(1) Goodwill:

Gondwill is not amortised but it is tested for impainment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in eircumstances indicale
that it might be fimpaired, and is carried at cost less zecumulated impairment Josses. Gaing and lesses on the disposal of an entity
inclode the carrying amount of goodwili relating to the entity sald.

Goodwill is pllocated to cash-generating ueils for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generaling
uniis or Groups of cosh-geooraling units that are expected to benefit Gom the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
nnits or Groups of units are identified at the lowest lovel at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,

(m) Intangible assets

Intangille assels are stated at acquisition cost, nel of accumulated smortisation and accomulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible
assels are amortised on a writien down value basis over their estimated useful lives,
The management estimales the uselul life for the intangible assel as fllows;

Ass=t Useful Life
Comnpuler software 5 years

The amortisation period and the amartisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the
asset is significantly differcot from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

An sssel's earrving amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the zssel’s carrying amonat is greeter than its
estimated recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by eomparing prowecds with carmying amount, These are included in profit or loss within
olher ineame / other expenses,
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(n) Trade zand cther payahles

These amounts represent Habilitiss fur goods and services provided to the Group privr to the end of fnancial year which are unpaid.
Trade and ather payables are prosented as current Babilities unless payment is not due wilhin 12 manths afler the reporting perind or
operating cyule, as applivable. They are tecognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effertive interest method,

(0) Barrowings

Pearowings are initially recoguised at fiir value, net of lansaction costs ineacred, Boriowings are subsequently tieacsred 2t gnortised
cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transsction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit ar 1oes over the
perind of the barrowings nsing the éffective interest method,

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific dale, are clussified as Habilities. The dividends on thess preference
shares are recognised in profit or boss 2s fnarice costs.

Borruwings are temoved from the consolidated statement of saets and Jiabilities when the obiigation specifisd in the coniracl is
discharged, canvelled or fepired. The difference betwecn the carrying amount of a financial Hability that has bren oxtinguished or
transfersed to another party and the consideration paid, including auy non-cash pssets transfeczed or labililies assumed, is 1o whised
in profit o loss as other fnconme £ oiher experses.

Whers the terms of a financial Halilils ace rencgotiated and the entily issues equity instruments to a craditor ta stinguish all ar part of
the liahility (debt for equity swap), a gain or lnss is vecognised in profit or lose, which is measired as the differense batw ey the carrying
amount of the finaneial Hability and the fait value of the equily instruments issued.

An exchunge between an existing barrower and lender of delt instruments with substaniislly different termes shall be acevunted for as
an extinguishment of the original fivaneial Walidlity and the recognition of 2 new financial linhility, Similady, & substantial mediBeation
of the lerms of an existing fnancial Haliliy or a part of it (whetlier or not atiributable to the finsneial diffically of the debton) is
acevunted for as an extingulshment of the original fnancial liability and the recognition of a new financial Hability, The difference
between the careying amoust of a financial Babllity {or part of a finsncial lialdlity) extinguished or transfierrad to ancilier party and the
consideration paid, iaduding aay non-cash assels transferzed or labilities sssumed, is recognised in profit or Joss.

Borrowings are classified as curreat labifiies oless the Grovp has an uneeaditional vight to defer settlement of the liability for a period
at lzast beyend the Group's aperating cyels. Where there is a lweach of a malerial provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or
before the end of the reparting petiod with the effect that the liabiliiy becomes payable on demand en the reparting dale, the entity docs
nct classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, afler the reporting perind and before the approval of the consalidated finencial
statemients for fssus, not to demand navment 25 2 consequencs of the breach.

(p) Borrowing cost

General and specific borcowing costs that are divectly altributable to the acquisition, constiuetion or praduction of a qualifing asset are
copilatiszd during the period of time (cocept for the contract on which revense is recognissd ver the nerind of time) that is reguired to
eomplete and prepare the assel for its intended use or sale. Qualifying nssets are assets that necessarily take g substantial periad of sime
to get Teady [or their intended vse or zale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is snspended and charged to the consolidated stuwemsnt of
profitand loes during extended periods when aclive development activity on the qualifying asset is intermapted.

Investment income eamed on the temporary investmont of specific bortuwings pending theic expenditure or gualifvieg 200 1s is
deducted fram the borrowing eosts cligible for capitalisalion.

Other borowing cos's 2z expensed in the period in which they aze incurred,

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions .

Frovisivns are recognized when theve is a present legal or constiuetive obligation ag a r=sult of past evenle, iLis probeble that an ouilow
of tesaurces embodying economic bensfits will be required to setile the altigation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the
ohligation, Provisions are not tecognised for fiuture operating losses,

Frovisions are measured at the present value of management’s best eslimate of the expendiluce required to saiila the prosenl ahligation
at the end of the reporting perind. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounling the
expected fulure cash flows at 2 pre-lax rale that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the dsks sve-ificto
the liahility. Where discounting is used, the increnss in the provision due to the passage of lime is recngnised ae an inlersst expense, The
decount rate vied fo determine the present value is a pre-lax rale that reflects curreat market ssscssments of the time value of momey
and the vicks speciis to the Pl iy, '

Capiingent dabitities

Contingewt Dabiliiies are disclosed whea toete ie a possilile obligation arising fiom past events, Lhe existzace 27wl ce will be aoenfirmed
only by the aceemence or zom-ecovrrence of one or mare uncertain fulice events nol wholly within the conirol of the Group, or a
presenl obgeilon thac aiises from past events where 1t is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to se'tle the
ohligaiion or a reliable eatimate of the smount canniot be made.
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Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the consolidaled financial statements as at and for the March 31, 2025
{All amonats iz 'NB laklis, unlecs oth zrwisz staled}

(r) Eragloyce beasfits

(i) Shoot term ol ligations

Liahilitizs far \u; 2 and salaries, fncluding nonemonstasy benedits that are eapected to be setiled whally within periad of cperating
o Te 2fler the =nd of the periggd ia whick the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of emplivess’ servives up to
tie ead avithe reporting perin and are measired al the amounts sxpected to be paid when the linbilities are settled.

(11} Other long term emploayee henefit obligations

Theliabilities for carned leave ara not expected o be seitled whelly within peviad of operating evele afier the end of the perind in which
the employees render the related service. They are therefine measured as the present value of expected fulure pasments ta be made in
respect of 2ervices provided by eniphoyoes up 10 the end of the teporting period nsing the projected unit credit nethuid, The Fansfitr are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reparting pariod that hove tevms approximating o the terms of the releted
ohligation. Remeusirements ag o resslt of experience sdjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in profit or Joss,
The ohligations are presented as current Hahilities in the halance sheel if the Group does not have an wmeanditional right to defr
setflement for a paviod at least beyond the Group’s aperating cyle, regurdless of when the actual setflement is expecied to cecur,

(iii) Post-employment abligations
The Group operates the fallowing post-employment seheses.

. defined benefit plan L. graluity
. defined contribution plans such 25 provident fiund

Graluity ebligations

The lability or assel recognised in the consolidated statement of zesets and liabilities in respeet of defined benefil grotuily plen is the
present value of the dufined benafit slligation af the end of the reperting perind less the fair valune of plan zescts, The definad benefit
obligation is caleulated crnoally by astuarics using the prajected unit credit methad,

The picscnt value of the d-fired benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated fulnre cash ouitiows by ef-reice 1o
murket yicids at the end of the reporting period on goverament bonds that have lerms approxinaling 1o Hie terms of the relaled
abiigarion,

The net inferest cost is eadenlated by applying the discount rule to the net halunce of the defined benefit abligation and the fir value of
plan 2ssets, This cost is included in amplovee benefits expecse in the consolidated slatement of profit and Joss,

Remeasurcment gains and loases arising from experience adjustiments and changes in actuarial assumplinns are recogniad in the
rieriand in which they aceur, directly in giher comprebensivz income,

They are inelsded fa reinined earnings in the consolidated sutevsent of changes in eguity and in the consolidited stajenyant of ae stz
and lix? ilitles,

Chasges in the pioeal valre of the defined benefit ohifgition resulting fom plan amendments of cu-taliments are tzcognis
Tmmediately o profitor loos 23 pam soovice rost,

Defined cort davtion plans

The Group pays provident fund vorlibutions, ESIC, ele to publicly admivistered provident finds pnd other finds as per Tocal
rezelations, The Cooup has no further paymaent ohligation once the contributfons have been paid. The contributions are aceonnt=] fu as
J«ﬁm*d conbrilmiCon plans and tie conleibutions are reeognised as emplovee benefils cxpense when they are incurred,

(i) Emplines upl‘n.Js

The Fair valus ofup' tuns granted under the Rustomjes Empl zea Stock Option Plan 2022 is recognissd as an employes benefits expense
with a earresponding mereass in equity, The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair'value of the anticns
granied:

s including aoy market performance conditions (e g the entity's share price).

« excluding the bnpact of any service and non-market performance vesling eondilions (e g profilability, sales growth targe s end
temaining an employee of the sulily over a specified tine period).

« including the impact of any nem-vesting conditions (7 g. the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a specific period of
timel.

The total sxper sz is recognized cver the vesting perind, which is the perind over which all of the specified vosting conditiva- are to be
satisfied. At the end of cach period, the enlity revises its estimates of the pumber of aplions that are expected to vest besed on the pon-
markei vesting and service conditions. It recognises the imipact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or lnss, wiih a
eorresponding adinstmert to 2guily,

Group transactions involve repayment arrangements that requlite dme group entily to pay another group Ellﬂl)« for the provision of the
=l‘.4im-l-..n-..‘.p..vrn=uu i the suppliersof goods of services, In suck cases, the eality that receives the goods or services shall acconniasa
cuh-settled share-Lased payment {ransaction,

Wherg shares are torf=ited due to a faflure by the employee to aatisfy the service eonditions, any expenses ;mm-uaiy Te -:_r,m- ed in
relgtion to such skarzs are reversed effective from the date of the forfeiture.

{s) Farnings pex share "

(i} Basic earnings par share
Inrs per shure is calenlated by dividing:
it table to owiers of respective clase of equity shares of the Group

L

= By thie wrelghts 2 vverr o murnles of equily shares (respective sz wize) sutslanding during the finsueial year,

(i1) Ditted sorning: per shars

Lilited cornings per chme adjucls the fgures used in the delermination of basic carnings per shave to take into account,

«the aller e e elizci of interesi and other Gnancing coms associated with dilutive putential equity shaces, and

o the weightsd zvecage number of additional equity shares that would have besn outstanding ascaming the conversion of el dilutive
pulsatial equity shares.




Keystone Reallors Limiled

Notes to the consolidated financial staterments as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nole 2D : Other Accounting Policies

(a) Scgment reporting

Operating segimenls are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker

(L),

The Board of Directors of the Company have been identified as the CODM as they sesess the financial perfarmance and position of e
Group, snd malkes steategic declsions,

(b) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functicnal and presentation currency
Tems inclnded in the consolidated Ansncial stalements for each of the Croup's entilies are measured usi ng the currency of the primary

economis epvitonment in which the enlity operates (‘the finctional currency’). The consolidated financial statemente are presented in
Indian rupee (INR), which is Keystans Realtors Limited's fanctional and presentation currency.

) Transaslions dnd balanies

Fureign currency ransactions are translated into the finetional currency using the exchunge rates at the dates of the transactinns.
Fureign exchange gains and losses reaulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assels and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rales are generally recognised in profit or loss. A monetary ftem for

which setllement is neither planned nor Bkely to nceur in the foresecabla fulure is considered as 2 part of the entity's net investmeant in
that [oreign operation,

(c) Contributed equity
Euynily shures are classified az equity.

Incremental eosts directly atiributable to the fssue of new shares or aptions are shewn in squily as a deduction, net of tax, frum the
prowesds,

(d) Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately anthorised and no Jonger at the discretion of the enlily,
on or hefure the end of the reporting perind but nol distrilated at the end of the reporting period.

{e) Rounding of amounts

All amounis disclosed in the eonsclidated finaneial stalements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule I, pnless stherwise stated. Amount below rounding off norms adopt=d by the Group has been represented by
-

Note 2E: Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted hy the Group

The Miristry of Corporatz Affairs vide notification dated September 09, 2024 and Seplenilier, 28 2024 notified the o panies (Indisn
Aceounting Standands) Second Amendment Rules, zo24 and Campanies (Indian Acconnting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024,
respectively, which amended/ potifisd cedsin zecounting standards (see below), and are elfective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or afler April o1, 2o24:

« Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and

» Lease Liability in Sale and Leaschack — Amendments to Ind AS 116

These amnendiments did not have any malerial impact on the amounls recognised in prive periods and are not expected to signifivantly
affect the current of fuluce periods,

Nole 2F: Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone financial stalements requirss the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
aclal results. Management also needs to exercise judgment in applyving the Group's accounting pelicies This nole provides an overview
afthe arcae that involved a higher degree of judgment ar eomplexity, and of items which are mare likely to be materially adjusted dus to
estimates and assumplions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

* Revenue Recognition (Refer Note 2C(a) above)

Revenue from sale of r2al estale inventory is recognised at a point in time ar over the perind based on the contract entered with the
custamiers,




Keystone Realtors Limited
Notes te the consolidated financial stalemenis as at and for the March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

* Evaluation of ret realisable value of inventories (Refer Note 2C(h) above)

Tnventories comprising af finished goods and construction work-in progress are valued at lower of cost and nel realisahle value, Net
Realisalle value is based upon the estimates of the managemenl. The effect of changes, if any, to the estimatas is revognised in the
Finaneial Statements for the perind inwhich such changes are determined,

» Consolidation decisioms

* Transactions with shareholders

The Grotip assesses the facts and circumstances of each case to determing whether a lender is acling in its capacity as 2 shareholderina
transaction ar far transactions between f2llow eulsidiaries, whether there is, in substance, a eapital eantribulion or a disteibution given
(effectively via the parent). Thiz affects the determination of whether the #feet of the transactiom is teconded in equily or profit or lose
This includes, lor instones, the walver of inlerest paymient by non-contralling sharehelder on the corresponding dabt issued {o the non-
controlling sharehnlder, resulting in modification of debt. In such cases, the Management exervises its judgment in delermining if the
lender is acting in its capacity as a shareholder and therefore whether the gain or lose on such modification should be reeorded in
equity.

« Impairment Insses on investments and Impairment of finaneial assets (Refer Note 2C(e) and 2C(1) above)

In assessing npalrment, management estimates the recoverable amounts of investiments based on expected fulure cash Sowz and ses
an inlerest rale to disconnt them, Estimation uncedtainty relates to assumptions about fiture cash flows and the determination of a
suilable discount rale. For Bnancial assels, as at each balance sheet date, based on historical default rales chserved over experted life,
the mianagement nesesses the expected credit loss on outsta niling financial asscts.

* Investment in compulsory convertible dehentures of jointly controlled entity

The Group has elossifiad its imvestment in compulsory eonvertible debentures (CCD) of a jointly ennlrolled enlity as parl of its net
investment in jointly contoollzd entity subject to equity method of accounting, The Group has made significant judgoments in
determining the nalure of its interest in CCD. The CCD is convertible at any point u time by the issuer intn a fixed number of shares
and therefore it was sssessed to be classified 25 equity fram the ssuer's point of view, The Group alse determined that CCDs do not have
any liguidation preference to ordinary shares 2nd therefire will rank pari passn with the ardinary ghares on conversion, Further, sinee
the issuer can eonverl the insttuments at any point in time before the maturily, it can be converted into ardinary shares before
liquidation and therefore appropriate to be considered az in-substance equity from the Group's point of view.
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Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 - Right-of-use assets

The Group has taken various office premises under lease arrangements.
i) The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Group is as follows:

Particulars Buildin
Year ended March 31, 2024
Opening carrying amount 58¢
Additions 1,37!
Depreciation charge during the vear (38¢
Net carrying amount 1,570
Year ended March 31, 2025
Opening carrying amount 1,57¢
Additions 1,48¢
Depreciation charge during the year (67¢
Net carrying amount 2,380
ii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:
Particulars Amount
Opening as at April 01, 2023 61¢
Additions 1,32t
Aceretion of interest 9
Payment of interest (ot
Payment of principal (29:
Closing as at March 31, 2024 1,65¢
Current portion 27
Non current portion 1,37
Opening as at April o1, 2024 1,65¢
Additions 1,44
Accretion of interest 29¢
Payment of interest {20¢
Payment of principal (51¢
Closing as at March 31, 2025 2,57¢
Current portion 4
Non current portion 2,03

iii) Amount recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss:

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

Foi the year enda
March 31, 2024

Interest on lease liabilities

290 9,
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets 670 38
Expenses relating to short-term leases 238 29,
iv) Amount recognised in consolidated statement of cash flows:
Particilars For the Year ended For the year ende
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total cash outflow for leases (including short term lease) 1,146 68:




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5 - Investment properties

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 1,208 1,208
Closing gross carrying amount 1,208 1,208

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 327 286
Depreciation charge during the year 41 41
Closing accumulated depreciation 368 327
Net carrying amount 840 881
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for investiment properties
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rental income 87 100
Expenses relating to investment properties (41) (41)

The Group has given buildings on operating leases. These lease arrangements range for a period between 36 months and 72 months and are
cancellable leases.

(i) Fair value
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investment properties 2,504 2,580

Estimation of fair value

The Group carries out independent valuation for its investment properties at least annually. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Group considers information from a variety of sources including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less aclive markets, adjusted to
reflect those differences

(b) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows

(c) capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

The fair values of investment properties have been determined by an independent registered valuer. The main inputs used are discounted cash
flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows. All resulting fair value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3.




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6 - Intangible assets

. Computer
Particul P i
culars St Goodwill Total

Year ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross earrying amennt 230 1,580 1,810
Additions (refer note 58) , ' - .30,244 30,244
Closing gross carrying amount 230 31,824 32,054

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 226 - - 226
Amortization charge during the year 3 - s 3
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 229 - © 229
Net carrying amount 1 31,824 - 31,825

Year ended March 31, 2025
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 230 31,824 32,054
Additions (refer note 58) - - =
Closing gross carrying amount 230 31,824 32,054
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accnmulated amortisation 229 - 229
Amortisation charge during the year * - -
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 229 - 229
Net carrying amount 1 31,824 31,325

Tmpairment testing of goodwill

In accordance with Ind-AS 36, gondwill is reviewed, at least annually, for impairment, The recoverable amount is estimated as the
higher of the CGU’s fair value less cost to sell, or its value in use. Directly cbhservable markst prices rarely exist for ihe Group's asseis,
however, fair value may be estimated based on recent transactions on comparable azsets, internal models used by th2 Group for
transactions involving the same type of assets or other relevant information. Calculation of value in use is a discounted cash flow
calculation based on continued use of the assets in its present condition, excluding potential exploitation of improvement or
expansion potential.

The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on value-in-use calculations which reguire the use of
certain assumptions. The calculaticns are based on cash flow projections approved by management as part of the financial budzeting
process. The goodwill is allocated to the single CGU in which the Group operates i.e., real estate constructions, development and
other related aciivities,

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount of CGU'’s ate set out below,
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Pre-tax discount rate 15.44% 15.00%

These projected cash flows are discounted to the present value using a Cost of Equity (discount rate). The discount rate is
commensurate with the risk inherent in the projected cash flows and reflects the rate of return required by an investor in the cuireat
economic conditions,

The Group uses specific revenue growth assumptions for each reporting unit based on history and economie conditions.

As a result of goodwill impairment test for the year mentioned above, no goodwill impairment was identified as the rzco/crable value
of the CGUs to whom gooawil! was allocated =xceeded their carrying amounts at all the years reported abova.

Impact of paesible changes in key assumptions ;

The Management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the recoveraliz
amouiit to fall below the carrying value of any of the CGU having allocated goodwill.




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, zo25

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7 - Investments accounted for using the equity method

< Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
a) Investmient in Equity Instruments (unguoted) accounted using equity method

In joint venlures and assoviates

Jyotirking Construelions Private Limited s *

Kapstone Crmstroctions Privale Limited {refer nate (i) helow) 31,715 34,977

Krishika Develapers Privale Limitad i h.d

Redgum Realtors Privale Limited 44 45

Ajmiera Luxe Really Privale Limiled 15 *

Rostia Realtors Private Limited 2 =t
b) Investment in Limited Liahility Partnership

In associates - at equity method of accounting

Megacorg Constouetions LLP * i
Total 31,795 35.022
Nete

(1) Investiment in Equity Instrumenis includes 9,541,775 (March 31, 2024 0,541,775) 16 00% Serfes II-B rated, Compuisorily Convertible Debenture

of Bs, 100 each fully paid- up held in Kapstone Constroctions Privite Limiled.

geregale amount ofumln--i-.f]-j“-. tm

A 31,795 35,022
Aggregate amount of quoted invesiment and market value thevenl - %
Aggregate pmount of impairment invalue of investinents = T
Nole 8 - Non-cuirent inveshnenis
2 Asgat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
a) Equity investments and mutual funds (unquoted, at fair value through profit and loss)
36,010 aquity shares of Rs. 25 each fully paid-up held in Zoroastrian Co-operative Bank Limited q g
Ly e stment in Mutuel Funds 8,199 7,857
b) Investments in Alternative Investment Funds ("AIF") (ungquoted, at fair value through
profit and loss)
6,425,679 [22,00 880] units of Rs, 100 sach held in MT K Resi Development Fund 7,543 2,324
15,806 10,160
Aggregate amwnt of gooted investment and market valus thereaf = -
Aggregale amount of uniuoted Investiment 15,R0b 10,190
Aggregale amount of impairment in value of investments - -
Note 9 - Other non-current financial asscts
Asat Asat

Particulars

March 31, zo25

March 31, 2024

Unsecured and considered good

Long term deposits with hank - deposils with original maturity of meore than 12 months*® Bs2 1,064
Securily deposite 858 Bya
Tolal 1,720 _m

*Lowig termn deposits with bank include restiivied deposit of INR 524 (As at March 31, 2024: INR 779 ). The restriclions are primarily on account of

deposit held as margin money against guarnntees and borrowlogs.

Note 10 - Current tax asscls (net)

2 Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Advance tax including tax deducted at source [net of Lax provisions] 6,560 8,050
Total 6@60 8,980




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 11 - Other nen-current assets

. Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Considered good
Deposit with government authorities 1,551 fa3
Advanecs ta land avwner and athers 62 62
Total 1,653 805

Nole 12 - Inventories

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Coinpleted salealile units

40,044 94,250
Stock-in-trade 2,316 504
Canstruction material 1,106 1,216
Comstrustion work-in-progress 321,013 255.888
Land 20,585 19,079
Tolal 386,054 371,025
Refer helow Motes 22 and 27 for information on invenlosies affered as security against borrowings taken by the group {iefer nole 53}
The amount of inventory expectad to be realis=d greater than 1 year is INR 222,662 (Masch 31, 2024 INR 1.53.502)
Note 13 - Current investments
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investrent in mwotual funds - (Unguoted) (At fair value through profit and loss) Boa 387
Total Boo 387
Aggregie amaunt of unguoled investment Bog 487
Aggregaie amount of quoted investment and markst value thereof - -
Azpregate amoent of impainment in valoz of investments - =
Note 14 - Trade Receivahl
Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Trade receivables from conlract with customers
From related parties (refet niote 44) as9 280
From others 8,279 10,248
Loss allowanee (193) (51)
Total 8.345 10,477
Cusrenl postion 8345 10,477
Nem-current portion - -
Break-up of security details
: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables considered gum‘}“sﬂ‘ulé‘i = =
Trade receivables considered good — Unsecursd B,538 10,528
Tirade receivables which have significant increase in eredit risk - -
Trade receivables — credit impaired = =
Total 8.538 10,528
Loss allowance (103) (51)
Tolal trade receivables 8,345 10,477

Nate 12 Trade teceivable include INR 259 (March 31, 2024: INR 280) due from fioms or private companies in which any director is a pariner or

directir or miember,

Woste 2 ¢ Refer below Notes 22 and 27 for information on trade receivables offered as security against borrowings taken by the Group




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Stalements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables ageing Schedules for the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024 outstanding froun the due

date of payment:

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

: As at As at
Particalars March 31, 2025 March 3¢, 2024
Nt Due 2,m3 5.737
Less than 6 months 2,296 3,575
6monthe-1year 2,45 265
1-3 year 9h4 521
2-3years 16 421
Muve than 3 yenis 304 566
Tolal 8,537 10,528
Liss allowance L1gs) (51)
Total trade receivables 8,344 10,477

Note 15 - Cash and cash equivalents
" Asat Avat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Ralunves with hanks

Incuttent acoonnls® 0,647 11,538

Chegue on hand 7,309 =
Cash gn hand 79 77
Deposits with original maturily of less than 3 months® 47,319 11,379
Total 63,754 22,064

*Includes INR 127 (March 31, 2024 : INR Nil) in current acconnts and
stated in the placement document for QIP (refer nole 57).

Nole 16 - Bauk balances other ihan casb and cash equivalents

INR R.o00 (March 31, zoz4: INR Nil) in deposits account Will be uhilised a8

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
In deposily aceounts * 3.Ro7 3,743
Diepaosits for criginal maturity of rore than 3 months bul less than 12 months 13.367 7482
Balanees with banks- in current aceounts (restrictad @ 3,655 2,423
Total 20,829 13,048
Note:

* This represcnts restricted deposils primarily on ace
# Balances with banks tepresent amounis in the de
Development) Act, 2016,

Note 17 - Curicent Loans

nt of denosit held as

¢ aguinst guarantecs and borrowings.
ted separale bank accounts as per provisions of the Real Extate (Regulation and

Particul Asat Asat
M March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Loans
- To related parties (refer note g4) 7,779 550
- To others & n&n 4,528
Total 15,850 11,087

Laans or Advances in the nature of loans are grant=d to Promolers, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined vnder Companies Act, 2013,)

Fither soverally or jointly wilh any other parson aze as helow:

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan

outstanding

Percentage to the

total loens

As at March 31, zo25
Fromoters

Direcions

KMPs

Related Partiss

As at March 31, 2024
Proanolers

Directors

KMPs

Rolated Padlies

6,559

Note:

Loans to related parties includes INR 3,102 (March 31, 2024: 4,126) is due from firms or private companics in which any director is a paniners or

director or Terilier.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Nule 18 - Other current financial assels

. Asat Asat
Partical

O March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Unsecured and considered good
Tnterast averusd on deposits with hanks 6RE 467
Interest recelvable (including related parties) 4.04R 3,363
Depewits with land cwmers and housing societjes 142 1,082
Reveivahle from JV partners 759 L
Security Deposits 5792 4,095
Dreposits with hank remnaining matucdly of less than 12 months 1,940 2,906
Other receivable (including relat=d parties) (Refer note 44)° 11,057 19,381
Unsecured and eonsidered doubtful
Renland UTﬁEEY Diaposils 6 &
Frovision fur rent and wiility deposit (6) (6)
Total 25.316 2,097
® includes INR B B17 (March 31, 2024 15,747 ) assigned receivables aoquired on s iom (Refer note 58)

#Receivahle from JV partner represents additions] contbution made towards share of net assels ta be recovered from joint venture partner,
Note 19 - Current tax assets (net)

3 Asat As at
Faxtunlnre March 31,2025  March 31, 2ozg
Advanwe toax including tax deducted at sowrce [net of Lax provisions] 1,248 -
Total 1,248 =
Note 20 - Other current assels

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

Marcl: 31, zo2g4

Unsecured and considered good

Advances to Landowners and housing sovielies 11,419 6.684

Advances for supply of goods and services (including related parties) (Refer note 44) 16,286 12,497

Balance with government authorities 2,466 341

Prepaid expenses (includez cantract enst INR 10,100 (Mach 31, 2024 INR 12,78¢)) 12,108 15,507

Unsecured and eonsidered doubtful

Advances for supply of goods and services 21 21

Advances to sowielies Lo 26

Provision for doubtful advances (21) (47)
Total 42,379 37.799
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Stalerments as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Nole 21 - Equity share capital and other equity
Note 21(a) - Equity share capital
(i) Authorised share eapital

Asat As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
428 010,000 [March 31, 2024: 428, 000,000} equity shares of INR 10 each 42,801 42,800
4an,000 [March 31, 2024: 420,000] redeemable preference shares of INR 10 cach 42 42
Total 42,843 42.Rq2
(ii) 1ssued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

i As at Asat

ul

AR March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Equity share capital
126,026 923 [March 31, 2004: 113,888 198] Equity shares of INR 10 ¢ach 12,603 11,389
Tolal 12,603 11,380

(iii) Rights, preferences and restriclions attached to shares
Equily Shares

The romipany hes ome dlass of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per shure. Each shareholder is aligihle for ane vote per share held The dividend propossd by

the Boaid of Ditect
liggn
shareholding.

5 iz subiject to the approval of the sharcholders in the en

(iv) Movement in equity share capital

g Annunl General Meeling, exoeplin case of interim dividend, In the event of
ation, the equily sharehalders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportinn to their

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount H¥hen i Amonnt
shares
Equity Shares
Balunce as at the beginning of the year 113,755,198 11,389 13877423 11,388
Add: Changes during the year (refer nete 56 and §7) 12,138,125 1,214 10,775 1
Ralance as at the end of the year 126,026 325 12,663 113,857,198 11,389

Nole; During the year, the company has received equity share application money pending allotment amounting to INR * (3.379 number of equity shares),

(v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Asat As at
Partealass March 31, 2025 — Ms:-rch 31, 2024
i . umber o - 4
Number of shares % Holding lisres % Holding

Brunan Irani 47,872 460 a79u% 47,872,460 4z2.03%

Peicy Chowdhry 23,036,230 18.99% 23,936,230 21.02%

Chandresh Mehta 23,911,230 18.97% 23,936,230 21.02%
Total 95,719,920 75.95% 95,744,920 84.07%
(vi) Shareholding of promolers are disclosed below:

Number of % total Shares % Changes during
Name of Promolers Shares the year
As at March 31, 2025

Borman Irani 47,872,460 37.99% -4.05%

Percy Chowdhry 24,026,230 18.0y% -2.027%

Chandre<h Mehta 23,011,230 1Bg7% -2.04%

As at March 31, 2024

Reaman Irani 47,872,460 42.00% -6.51%

Percy Chendhry 23,036,230 21.02% -3-26%

Chandresh Mehta 23,096,230 21 nz -3.26%
21(b) - Reserves and surplus
Particul Asat As at

articniaty March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Securilies preimiui fescrve 157,773 Bn.5ab
Retained earnings 78,881 61,861
Debenture rademplion reserve 24 24
Capitid reserve 1,138 1,138
General resencs 23,085 23,085
Employee slock aption oulsianding 3.h05 1,6R3
Total 264,506 168,387
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(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Securilies premium reserve

y As at As at
P
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year R0 506 an 504
Aot tecetved on dssus of shires (Refer Note 42 and Ntz 56) 78 867 5i
Less: Amounlutiiised for sharg issue sxpenses (Refer Note 57) 72 -
Add : Bmplovee stock option exercised during the yuar 38 21
Balance at the end of the year 157,773 80,554
(ii) Retained earnings
Particulars Asat Anal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 61,861 50,160
Dther comprehensive loss- temeasurements of post smplayment benefit plan (176) (94)
Profit for the yoar 17,196 11,221
Transferred to cetained carnings due to change in sconomic inl=rest in subsidiary - 574
Balance at the end of the year 78,881 61,861
(iii) Debenture redemption reserve
. Asat As at
Particul
ENIRES March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balunee al the beginning and at the end of the year 24 24
(iv) Capilal reserve
xs As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the of the year 1,138 1,138
(v) General reserves
- Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2ozg
Pulance at the beginning and at the eni of (he of Lhe year 23,085 23,085
(vi) Emplovee stock option oulstanding
i Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 1683 23
Emplosee stock option issued during the year 2050 1,082
Enipluyee stock option exercised during the year (38) (21)
Balance at the end of the year 3,695 1,683

Nature and purpose of other reserves:
Debenture redemption reserve

The Group is vequired to creale a debenture redemption reserve oul of the profils which i= available for payment of dividend and for the purpose of redemiplion of

redesmahle non convertible and optionally convertible debentices,

Securities preminm

Securities preminem is used to record the premium on fssue of shares. This is uilised in accomlance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capilal Reserve

Capilal reserve is crealed ont of profits or gains of a capital nature, The capilal reserve is

distribution of dividend,

General Reserve:

gvanilable for ulilisatinn against capital purpose and are not available for

The Group has transferred a partion of the nat profit of the Group before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act,

1956, Mandatory transfler to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2043,

Employee stock option oulstanding:

The share aptions outsianding aceount is used to Tecognise the grant date fair valne of options lssued to employees under Rustomjes Emplovee stack opiion plan,
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(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 22 - Non current borrowings

: As at Asat
Particul
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Termloan :
- Fronn Banks (Refer Nute 270671 15,059 43,803
- From Financial instilutions (Refer Note 27010) 5.520 15,238
Vehicle Loans
- From Bank (Refer Note 27(1n)) 182 306
- Fram Others (Refer Note 2700)) A8 134
Unsecured
Dehentures
50,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 50,00,000) 12% Optionally convertible debentures of Rs100 6,860 6,320
each(Relsr Note 27(v))
Redeemable non convertible Preference shares (Refer Note 27(v)) 55 55
Less : Current maturilies of long-term debis (included in eurrent borrowings) - (3.570)
Less: Inferest acerued (incloded in current horrowings) (15) (36)
Less : Interest acerued (included in nen-current financial liahilities) (1,R60) (1,320)
Total 25,869 60,930
Refer note 27 for nature of security and terms of repayment
Note 23 - Lease liabilities- Non-current
= As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease Habililies 2,035 1,377
Tolal 2,035 1,377
Note 24 - Trade payables- Non-current
X Asat As at
Rl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payahles
Due to micra and small enterprises (MSME) - -
Dues to others 556 185
Total 556 185
Refer mote 29 for ageing of trade payables
Note 25 - Other non-current financial liabilities
Particul Asat Asat
REHETA March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security deposils towards rented premises 8 8
Interest acorued but not due on borrowings 1,860 1,320
Corpus fund puyable to socicty 15,468 16,317
Total 17,336 17,645

The Group collects corpus fund deposit as an agent from the customers. The Group has invested the corpus fund deposit in fixed deposits
and any other investment sehemes, The interest income [/ return accrued shall be first utilised for mainienance of the society, in case of any

shortfall corpus fund deposit shall be utitised.

Note 26 - Non current provisions

- As at Asat
e 5 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee henefit
Gratuity (Refer note 48) 485 251
Total 485 251
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Note 27 - Current Borrowings

As at Asat
Particul
ArteRince March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Terin loans
= Fronn Banks (Refer Note (11) 2,417 -
= Fromn Financial Institulion (Refer Note (i 1,886 B Afz
Debentures
300 [March 31, 2024: Nil] 12% Bedecmable non-convertible dehentures of Rs 1,000,600 3,000
each (Refer Note (111) )
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from hanks (Refisr Note (iv) 4,401 8,265
Vehicle Loans
- From DBanks (Refer Nate (1)) 65 e
= From Others (Rofer Note (in)) a5 %
Current maturities of long term debt* 15 2,606
Unsecured loans
Prefeivive shares (Reler Note 26(v]) 673 =76
Dehentures (Refer Note 26(v))
2,079,163 (March 31, 2024: 2,079,163) redeemable cumulative non-convertible debentires 208 2n8
of INR 10 earh
301,500 [March 31, 2024; 51,500] Redeemahle Optionally Convertible Debentures of INR nTT7 5:150
10,000 gach (refer nole (1) hels 1\\-’) and (Refer nole ]
Loans and deposits from related parties (Refer Note (vi))
From related parties (tefer note 44) 41 37
From directors (tefer nole 44 ) 25 25
Lowsns fram Others (Refer Note 26(v)) 21,046 21,298
Total 64;;?9 47857

FTrcludes interest ovcrued on long-term borrowings

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured and unsecured borrowings:

(i) Term loans from banks and other parties

(a) Term loan (11-1) from Axis Bank Limited amounting te INR 4,553 (March 31, 2024: INR 14,900), ICICI Bank Limited
amounting to INR 10,056 (March 31, 2024: INR 17,212) and Aditya Birla Finance Limited amounting to INR 4,907 (March

31, 2024: INR 8,400) is secured against:

(1) Pari Passu charge by way of martgage of immavable properly ie, the units and g specific units of BR in Crown project including

propodionate undbvided share of land.
(i1) Pari Passu charge by way of mortgage on all other Crown project assels entive

() Pari Passu charge on cash Oews including present and futuce recejvables in the Crown project through an escrow mechanism

(iv) Pari passu charge on the development tights and all ather Crown project documents
(V] Fati Passu charge over Inferest Service Reserve acoount
Terms of repayment aiong with interest charged is as follows :

(i) the loan is repayable in 3.5 years quarierly installment including moratorium period of 18 months.
(i1) The loan carries interest rate linked to Axis Bank Limited 6 months MCLR +1,25%. Effeclive interest rale as at March 31, 2025 is 10,707,

(b) Term loan (TL-2) from Axis Bank Liraited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: 6,418), ICICI Bank Limited aincunticg
to Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 3,209) and Aditya Birla Finance Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: TNR 1,324} ic

secured against:

(i) Pari Pazen ehiarge on identified unsold units {neluding receivable thereon) of the Season project with a 1,.00x FACR
B g

(11} Pari Passu cherge over ISRA ( 2 months' interes! servdce obligations)

(1) The security shall be eross callateralized with security for TL-1 (term loen-1 facility of Axis bank on Real Gem Build Tech Fyvi, Lid. for
Bustoimjee Crown Project), Temay be noted that 60 days' line is stipudated for security perfection for TL-1.

Terins of repayinent along with interest charged is as follows :
Py -3 &

(i) the loan isTepayable in 3.5 years quarterly installment incloding motatorium period of 19 months
(11] The loan carries interest rate linked to Axis Bank Limited 6 months MCLR +0 80%. Effective inlerest rate as at Mas-h 31. 203518 1%,
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(¢) Term loan from Standard Chartered bank amounting to INR 1,695 (March 21, 2024 : Nil)

i) First charge over enlive Ocean Vista pr pjectfexcept Handover Area & unreleased Reserve Area) assols including developmient rights
(present and fuluce) avearded vnder the DA as well as any other FSI/TDR (present and future), building, Other mowahle / imimovahle pois
elewith minimum security cover of 1.5% Max LTV of 66.7%.
injT'he loan will be whelly repaid in 48 months, quarterly installments payahle at the end of every quarter, starling froin the end of 3nik
month from first dishursement. .

iii) The loan carries interest rate of 10.49% having MIBOR 7.20% and spread 3.2%.

(d) Term loan from ICICI bank limited amounting to INR 722 (March 31, 2024: Nil) is secured against;

iJExclusive charge by way of registered maorigage on the development rights of the Property

ii) Exclusive charge-by way of registered mortgage on the Project Panorama excluding the sold units and Secured Units, but incloding any
eancellations :

iii) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage/hypothecation on the future Seheduled Receivehles of the Project Panorama and all
insursnce procesds, hath present and falure.

iv) Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage on security of all rights, title, interest, clafins, benefits, demands nrder the Project
Documents of the Project both prescit and future.

v) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage/hypathecation on the Escrow Accour it/s of the Froject Panorama and the DSR Aceount all
munies ecredited /deposited therein (in whatever form the same may be), and all investments in respect thereof (in whatever form the ssme
Ty b-‘):

Terms of repayment along with interest charged is as follows:

The Bortower agiees and undertakes to repay to the Lender the principal anounts of the Facility in 12 monthly installments commencing
froun the 15th day of the “33" months from the Date of First Drawal/Dishursemnent,

The rate of interest for each dravl of the Facility will be stipulated by the Lender at the time of dishursement of each drawl, which shall be
sum of I-MCLR-1Y + “Spread” per annuim, subjzct to miniinum of I-MCLR-1Y, pius applicable statulony levy, if any. As on March 31, 2535
the I-MCLR-1Y is 9.10% and Spread is 0.90%.

(e} Term loan from Standard Chartered bank amounting to INR 450 (March 31, 2024: Nil) is secured against:

1) Sevured against the entire project assets (except handover area ) comprising of development tights, FSI and TDR.

i) Lown repayabile in & monthly installment starting from March 2027,

1) Lown carrying inferest at MIROR ie. effective rate being 10 no % pa.

) Term loar: from indian Bunk Limited amounting to INR Nii (March 22, 2024 : INR 2,064)

1) Secured against the development rights of Project Rustomjee Elements lower SC (wing "C") getting construeted on land of 20,218 sgaits
situated at Andhed Village new DN Nagar Andheri (west) Mumbai 53 at the survey no 106, part 5 of CTS no 195 having salealils arc.s of
137,717 5G ft.

ii} Exclusive morlgage charge on project assels (vz. inventory of lower C over lease hold proparty) through registered mintlpage end Charge
on ESCROW aceount along with RERA account to he maintained wilh the hank,

iii) Lewn repayable in 8 quartecly installment of INR 2,063 Lakhs sty rting from Septenber 2022,

iv) Laan carmying interest at the rate of 3.20% p.a above 1 year MCLR i e, effective rate befi 1g12.05 % p.a.

(g) Working capital term loan from Bajaj Housing Finance Limited amounting to INR 2,499 (March 31, 2024 : INE
2,136)

(i) Exclusive first charge by wigy of registered morlgage of development right ale g with present and future sale FST and all unsold units of
the Pruject "Erika';

(i1) Exclusive charge by way of Hypothevation of sehieduled receivahles from sold and unsold units (devels iper share) of the project and all
insurance proceeds, hoth present and fulure cash flows of the project;

{u1) Exclusive charge an the escrow accounts of the project and all monics credited/deposited therein (in all forms);

(iv) The loan earries an interest rate of BHFL-I-FRR HFCINS i.e 16 35% per annuam and Spread of - 3.20% per antim, 8o, the applicahle
rale i 13.15% per annum.

(v) Exclusive first charge by way of registered morigage of development right along with preseat and future sale FSI and all ursold units of
the Project "Stella”;

(vi} Exelusive charge by wey of Hypothecation of schedulad receivehles from snld and umsold units (des eloper share) of the project and atl
insurance proceeds, both present and future cask flows of the project;

(vii) Exclusive first charge on eurrent and fuhire FST/ Development of the project.

(viti) Exclusive charge on the ascrow accounts of the project and &1l moniss cradited fdeposited therein (in all forms);

(i) The loan carties an interest rate of BHFL-I-FRR i.e 16.20% per annum and Spread of (- minus) 5.95% per annmim.

(h) Term loans from Aditya Birla Finance Limited (ABFL') amounting to INR Nil (March 31, zo24 : 1,439)

(i) First & exclusive chaige on the Development rights and unsold units of the project Ashiana with a minimom security cover of LED timez
on the outstanding loan amount.

(11) Corporate Guarantee from Key stome Realtors Linmiied.

(1) First Charge aver exisling recefvables and future coh flaves in respect of the Project A<hisna,

(iv) Shortfall undertaking from the promaeters,

Terms of repayment along with interest charged is as follows:

(i) The repaymient of the loan will be made in mon by installments commencing from the end of the 36th mouth through the 6oth monih
from the date of the first dishursement, which is December 22, 2023,

(i) The term loan carties interest rate of 11 85% which is below Adilya Birla Finance Limited LTRR, phis applivable inlerest tax and ofher
statutory levy (if any) on the principal amount of the loans remaining onlstanding each day,
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(i) Term loan from Tala Capital Housing Finance Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 2,169) is secured
against: .

(i) Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage over developmient tights and FSI of project Parishram by Rustomjee situated at Pali Hill
Road, .Banidra. .

() Exclusive charge ti; be created on Security Flat admeasuring 2,665 sq. ft. carpel area i.e. 4,397 57 ft. saleable area, immediately UpoT
receipt of OC of the Project.

(m) Exclusivecharge by way of hypothecalion on all the receivables including sold, unsold, insurance receipts, development and other
charges and any cosh inflow in the redevelnpment Project-Rustomjee Pali Hill Parishram,

(iv) DSRA equivalenlto 3 monthe' interest on outstanding amount of the facility.

Terms of repayment along with interest charged is as follows:

Moratorinm peried of 36 months and therafter 24 equated monthly instalments commencing from the end of 37th month sinee the date of
first drawdown nnder the facility,

Rate of Inlerest will be Construction Finance Privne Lending Rate (CFPLR) minus 6.45% per anmim on monthly reducing & floating rate
basis. The present CFPLR is 17.45% & present effective rate of interest will be 11 00% per annum on manthly reducing & floating rate hasts.
(j) Term loans from Tata Capital Housing Finance amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2024 : INR 7,942)

i} Exclusive charge on all piece & paccel of Iand located at new survey no 5, atvillage Dongre, Virar (west) adimeasuring approx. 33.417 sq
mirs comprising of Avenue D1, L1, L2 & Lq ("the sald land") including all stroctures thereon present and fulure, along with all the
developrients potential arising therean (inchuding additional development polential) in form of TDR, premium, FSI ele. binth present and
futnre.

i) Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all the recelvables including sold, unsald, insurance receipts, development and other charges
including car park income and income through other amenities and any cash flow from Company's units in the project.

iii) Debt Service Reserve Acoonnt equivalent to 3 months interest on outstanding amount of the facility to be maintained on the form of FD
with lien marked to financial institution during the currency of loan

iv) Tenure: Total tentire of 48 manths including moratorium period of 24 maonths from the date of 1st dishursement of the term loan.,

v) Rate of interest will be Construction Finance Prime Lending Rate (CFPLR) minus 5.45% p.a. on monthly reducing & floaling rate basis, As
at halance sheet date effective applicable interest rate is 12.30%.

vi) Repaymient: 24 monthly installment starting from 25th month from the first dishursement of the term loan.

(ii) Secured Debentures

Redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCDs)

(1) First charge by way of equilahle mortgage over Develapment Rights of the Property

(1i) First pari-passa chacge by way of hypothecation an the Escrow Account of the Project,

() First pari-passu eharge by way of hypothecation on the fulure Schedulad Recelvahles of the Project and all insurance provesds, bath
present and future.

(iv) First charge on the ISRA and on all monies eredited/deposited thereln (in whatever form the same may be), and all investrnents in
respect thereof (in whatever form the same may be).

Terms of repayment along with interest charged is as follows :

(1) the term lnan is repayable in bullet payment at the end of 36 months from date of Allotment

(1) the term loan carried interest rate of 12% p.a. payahble monthly.

(ii1) Vehicle loan

Vehicle loan amounting to INR 350 (March 31, 2024: INR 440) is secured against:

Vehicle Loan I is taken from ICICI bank INR 57 (March 31, 20624: INR 72) and repayable in 60 monthly installment of INR 1.79 including
interest @ 8.65% p.a.

Vehicle Loan 1T is taken from HDEC hank INR 84 (March 31, 2024: INR 106) and repayvable in 60 monthly installment of INR 2.48
including interest @ 8 40% paa,

Vehicle Loan I is taken from Meredez-Benz Financial Services INR 103 (March 31, 2024: INR 134) and repayable in 48 monthly
installment of INR 3.48 including interest @ 8,27% pa.

Vehicle Loan TV is taken from Bank of Baroda INR 107 (March 31, zoz4: INR 128) and repayable in 60 monthly installment of INR 2 68
including inlerest @ 8.85% p.a.

These Inans are secured by undeclying assels against which these loans have been ohtained, refer note 53.




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) Cash credit and overdraft facilities

(a) The averdraft facility availed from Axis Bank Limited amounting to INR 882 (March 31, 2024: INR 8.039) is secured
by same securities as that of the term loan

(refer point (i)(a) above )

Inlerest rale is as follows:

The favillty carries inlerest rate linked to Axis Bank Limited 6 months MCLR +1.25%,

(b) The cash credit facility availed from The Zoroastrian Co-operative Bank Limited amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024:
INR 326) is secured against:

registered mortgage of 3 flals belonging to the Campany and directors,

Interest is payable monthly @ 1160% p a,

(c) Overdraft facility from Standard Chartered bank amounting to INR 2509 (March 31, 2024: Nil) is secured against:
a) Secured against the entite residential project being developed in multiple phases on land parcel admeasuring ~ 11,72 acres situated at
survey no. 26/2/2, 26/2/3, 27/1/A, 27/1/B and 27/1/C of village Bhal, Taluka Ambernath within lmils of Kalvan Dambivali Munivipal
Corpocalion.

Entire residential project is being developed in Joint Developmient Agrecment (TDA) on revenue sharing basis, with berrower's share being
79%.

Cursently Phase I of residential proiect under development having 4 buildings with minimum carpel acea of ~ 5.51 Jakhs sqft.

b) Tenure - 54 months ineliding principle moratorium of 24 months from the date of first dishursement

¢) Lawn ecarrying interest at the repo rate + 3.50% pa.

(v) Unsecured Debentures and preference shares

i) 50,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 50,00,000) 12% Optionally convertible debentures of Rs.100 each

12% Optionally ennvertible debentures (OCD) of Re.100 each with maturity period of 20 years, Each OCD converted into 10 equity shares of
one of the subsidiary of Rs, 10 each as mutually agreed by all the OCD halders, 12% p.a. inlerest to be acerued at the end of every year and
distributahle subject to availability of distributable cash flows.

ii) Redeemable cumulative non-convertible debentures: Kapstone Constructions Private Limited amounting to INR 208
(March 31, 2024: INR 208)

a. All the nom-convertible debentures (NCDg) shall, inter se, tank pacl pass, without any preference or priotity of one over the others or
olhers of them shall be free from any encumbrance.

b. The NCDs shall carry an inlerest rate of 0 01% per annum on face value. These NCDs are repayable on demand.

. Unless the NCDs are redeemed earlier, they shall be redeemed in full by paying the entire NCD redemplion amount, as per the revised
agreed date March 31,2026,

(iii) Redeemable optionally convertible debentures: MT K Kapital Trust amounting to INR 31,777 (March 31, 2024: INR
5:150)

i) Debienture holder shall reveive 12% pa coupon accmiing on quarterly basis and computed on the basis of 365 (three hundred sixty five)
days’ year or where the year is a leap year, a 366 (three limdred sixly six) days’ year and the actual number of days elapsed on the
oulstanding principal and payahle on availability of projeet surphis funds.

ii) Dehentures are redeemahle on redemplion date as determined by the board of directors of issuer and redemplion amount shall be
outstanding principal along with the redemption premium which shall result 22% IRR (inclusive of coupon of 12% pia.) on invested amouat
which shall be paid subject to availahility of project surplus funds.

iii) Tenire of dehentures is 4 years from the date of allotment of first Tranche, which shall further be extended by a petind of 6 (six) manths
as may be mutually agreed.

iv) The holders of debentures shall have option to convert debentures into equity shares of issuer in the ratio of 1:1, any time till final
selllement date, after occurrence of the event of default in accordance with debenture trust deed.

iv) Optionally convertible redeemahle preference shares (OCRPS): MT K Kapital Trust amounting to INR 545 (March 31,
zo24: INR 148)

i) Prelerence shareholders shall receive along with delenture holders 55.55% project snrplus after payment of coupon and redeniption
premivm and project management fees subject to availability of project surplus,

ii) Tenre of OCRPS is 54 months froin the date of allotment of first Tranche,

iii) During the tenure of OCRES and only upon oceurrence of the event of default, the Investor will have a right to convert, OCRPS info
common equity shares such that each OCEES held by the Investor will convert into one equity share of the issuer,

v) 548,728 (March 31, 2024: 548,728 ) 0.01% Redeemable preference shares (RPS) of Rs. 10 each: KMP's

The RPS shall carry an interast rate of 0.01% per annum on face value, These RPS are redeemable within 20 years. The eatly redempltion
oplion is with the company post completion of 48 monthe from the issne date,

vi)0.01% Redeemable preference shares (RPS) amounting to INR 128 (March 31, 2024: INR 128)

The RPS shall carry an interest rate of 0.01% per annum on face value, These RPS are redeemable on demand.

(vi) Unsecured Loans and advances from related parties and others
Lnans from others are repayable on demand, Iuierest is payable @ 0%-18% pa.
Loans from directors/ Loan from related parties are repayable on demand and interest free in nature




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 28 - Lease liahilities- Current

. As at Asat
Tkl March 31, 2025 March 31, zo24
Lease liahilities 544 273
Total 544 273
Note 29 - Trade payables- Current
" Asat As at
Particulars
HRSUER s March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
'[.1}“;}@ Pty 01-'11 ]
Diie to related party (refer note 44) 10,106 7
Due to micro and small enterprises (MSME) 996 926
Due to others 68,060 62,289
Tolal 79,162 64,222
Current and non-current trade payable ageing schedules for the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31,
2024
Outslanding for the year ended March 31, 2025 from the due date of payment
Particulars MSME Others
Unbhilled Dues 30 52,878
Not Due 451 9,168
Less than 1year 510 14,278
1-2 year 2 473
2- 3 years = 159
More than 3 years 1 1,456
Total 996 78,722
Quistanding for the year ended March 31, 2024 from the due date of payment
Particulars MSME Others
Unbhilled Dues 73 47,652
Not Due 705 6,677
Less than 1 year 143 5.504
1-2 year 1 L Tulid
2- 3 years 1 278
More than g years 3 2,464
Total 926 63,481

Note: Group does not have any dispuied trade payables to MSME & otheis




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 - Other current financial Habilites

+ . Asat Asat
Paxticulery March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Refimdable towards cancelled uni's 185 212
Carpus, Deposit and oftier cliarges payable to saciety and Payable to landowniers (met)* 15,173 11,483
Empluyee benefits payahle 1,428 2,028
Deferred Consideration payahle on business a uisition (Refer note 58) = 4,000
Other payables 1,028 5,161
Total 18,114 22,884
Notes:

" The Group collects deposits as an agent frum the customers for maintenance of the society, The unspent balance after ulilisation if any, will

be refimded at the time of handing over the society,

Note 31 - Current provisions

. Asat As at
£ 1

Tarticulazs March 31, zo25 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefils

Compensated absences (Refer note 48) 1,097 825

Gratuity (Refer note 48) 80 112
Others

Provision for eanveyance cost and incomplete work 452 454
Total 1,729 1,391
Note 32 - Current tax liabilities

As at Asax

Particulars

March 51, 2025

March 31, 2024

Incame tax provision (net of advance 1ax) 1,020 608
Total 1,020 608
Note 33 - Other current liahilities
" As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances fram customers (Contract Liahilities) (refer note 1 below ) 162,804 192,503
Statulory dies pavable 2,290 2,252
Others 2,674 1,682
Tolal 168,858 196,437
Note:

1. A Contract liahility is the abligation to transfer gnods or services to 2 customer for which the Group has received consideralion (or amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. If a costomer pays consideration hefore the Group tranafers gnnds or services to the custamer, a

contract Hahility is recogni=ed when the payment is made,

2 Advance from cuslomers expecied to be settled greater than 1year is INR 24,455 (Mareh 31, 2o24: INR 15,651}




Keystone Reallors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 41, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 - Revenue from operations (refer nole 54)

Particulars

For the Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue from Contract with Customers
Reveniie fom projects

162,009 21h,313
Other operating income
Sale of scrap w02 233
Others B,200 5,079
Total 200,410 222,225
Nole 35 - Other income
Particulars For the Year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Interest incame on Financial Assets at amortsed cost
On deposits with hanks

3.773 1,820
On intercorporate deposits including related parties (Refer note 44) 1,666 1,755
On Ineomie tax pefund 670 z
RBenlal incoime By 100
Reversal of foresecalile Joss - 446
Unwinding of financial instument 1,028 621
Net Gainin financial zesets measured at faic value through profit and loss 1,384 =
Liahility written back 2,402 =
Miscellinecus income T2 506
Total 11,734 5.338
Nole 36 - Construction Costs
w For the Year ended  For the year endad
Particulacs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Crst of land, development rights and reluled sxpen oz 58358 14,560
Cost of material consumed (refer note 26(a)) 11556 11,413
Labosir and miatedal contractual sxpenes 30, Ry 38 581
FSI, TDR and ather approval cost 2R 260 20,944
Cther site aperation expenses 11,584 8,23
Allacated expenses to the project
Depreciation and amartisation expences (iefer note qo) 49 55
Finance costs (refer nole 41) 7,174 6,585
Emiplovee benchft expenses {refer note 39) 8,499 5,384
Other expenses (1efer note 42) 1,073 1,163
Total 157,369 106,308
Nole 36 (a)- Cost of malerials consumed
Particul For the Year ended  For the year ended
R March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw material at beginning of the year 1,216 1,307
Add - Purchascs 11,536 10,778
Add: Adjustments on scoount of acquisilion {refer nole 58) 5 =14
Lese:- Raw material at end of the year (1,196) (,216)
Total enst of materials consumed 11.556 11,412




Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 37- Purchase of stock-in-trade

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Puschase of stock-int-trade

2,316 554
Total 2.316 594
Nole 38 - Changes in inveniorics of compleied saleable units and construction work- in-progress
Particulars For the Year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Invenlaories at the beginning of the year
Completed saleable units 04,250 57,205
Stoe k-in-trade 504 -
Comistruction work in progress 255,8R6 179,746
Land 19,079 18 B8y
Total (A) 369,809 255,928
Inventories at the end of the year
Compleled saleable vrils 40,044 94,250
Stock-in-trade 2,316 594
Constouction work in progiess 321,913 265 880
Land 20,585 19,079
Total (B) 384,858 365,809
Changes in inventorizs (C)=(A-B) (15,049) (113,881)
Less: Adjustients on acoount of acquisition (efer note 58) (D) - (190,591)
Less: Adjustment on aceount of change in ownership in joiotly contralled entities (E) - (2,688)
Decrease/ (Increase) in stock (C-D-E) (15.049) 79.398
Note 39 - Employee benefit expenses
Pastil For the Year ended  For the year ended
aRhna. March 31, 2625 March 21, 2024
Salaries anibenus 18,675 13,451
Contrilaition to provident and other fonds (Refer note 48) 603 381
Employee stock aptini expense (Refer nale 48) 1,502 045
Gratuity (Refer note 45) 151 83
Staff wellare expenses 516 303
21,537 15,163
Emgploves benefits expense allocated to construction costs (zefer node 36) (8,199) (5.384)
Total 13,038 9.779
Note 40 - Depreciation and amortisation expense
Pl For the Year ended  For the year ended
arhewiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment £62 353
Amartisation of intangible assets : 3
Depreciation on Investment property 41 41
Depreciation an Right-of-use assels 670 489
1,373 786
Degieciation and amortisition expense allocated to constrietion costs frefer note 38) (49) (55)
Total 1,324 731
Nole 41 - Finance costs
. For the Year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest
Interest and finance charges on lease linbilities and financial Habilities not at fic valoe through 11,719 10,053
profitor loss
Interest am sttt ory Ques 110 97
Oher horrogwing costs 485 445
12,322 10,513
Fincnce costs allacated to construction costs [refer note 36) (71743 (6,533)
Total 5.148 4,008




Keystone Reallors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Nule 42 - Other expenses

Pardeilass For the Year ended  For the year ended
’ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Advertisement and publicity 5,800 4,522
Crrnmission and brokeiage 2,823 2.558
Directors sitting foes 71 57
Legal and professional charges 4,405 2,012
Printing aned 2t .Iu'--m'-ry 32 17
Ritlez and taxes 214 Q77
Rent 358 243
Repairs and maintenance

~Vehivles 23 17

- Others 889 458
Sales promolinn 277 181
Trnpairnent loss on finaneia! 2ods gR2 -
Information technology expenses 1,157 g8
Travelling and conveyane 537 258
Corporate siwial respomsih ity expenlitme gui 204
Lo in financial zseets mcasur=d at faicvalue theough profit and Joss - 149
Loss allowanee on financial assets 142 a7,
House keey ontract charges 2,476 1,77
Miscellanesns expenses 1,792 1.876

22,280 16,355

Other expenses slocated to constriction costs (refir note 36) (1,073) (1,163)
Total 21,207 15,192
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Keystone Realtors Limited (formerly known as Keystone Realtors Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staiements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 44 - Related party transactions

(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:
(i) Other Reluted Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year or elosing balances existed at the year-end:

Key managenent peisonnel:
Mr. Boman [rani - Managing Direclor
Mr. Chandiesh Melita - Director
Mr. Perey Chenwdhry - Divector
Mr, S jul Gupla - CFO

Clame menber s of Key management personnel:
Mrs. Arvas uk 8 Chonwdhry

Assoviales
Megacorp Canstruetions LLP
Krishika Developers Private Limited

Joint Venlures
Kapstone Constructions Private Limited
Redgum Bealtors Private Limited (we f January 04, 2024)
Ajtnera Luve Realty Private Limited (we £ January 17, 2024)

Ertilies in which Key Management personnal exerclse significant influence :
Sweely Froperty Develupers Private Limited
Dieainz Dwellers LLP
Rustanjee Cambridge International School
Sangninity Realty Privale Limited
Manprit Real Estate Private Limited
Rustomjee Knowledge City Private Limited
Rustoin Irani Foundation
Parsn Builtwell Private Limited
Parliim Realtors Private Limited
Chiandresh Mehia Faraily Trust
Rustomjee Acadeny For Glahal Carcer Private Limited
Sk wcroper Care Juint Venture
Percy Chowdhry Family Trust
Attarchand Trading Company Private Limited

Nom executive divecior and independent dicector with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Mr. Ralwil Divan - Independent Director
Ms. 8eeina Mohapatra - Independent Direcior
Mr. Ramiesh Tainwada - Independent Director




Keystone Realiors Limited (formerdy known as Keystone Bealiors Peivate Timiled)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and {or the Year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

b) Transactions with related parties:
Key manasgement persannel compensation

Particul Year ended Year ended
i Mareh 31,2035  March a1, 2039

Shert-torm smployee benefits® 1,973 1028

Total 1,873 1,958

= a5 the b MMiies forgratuity aid o

Dhrring the year =nded Mareh 31, 2003, the Company has pranted 18 180 ESOP (March 31, 2024 1 37,000 BSOFP; 1o key managemenl personnel.

npensated sbasiors are prosided onactounial basis fon the ©

¢) Delails of transactions and balances with related parties

w

=3

7

1

]

12

13

p arzwhale the ame

ints pl:r!.-iv-'m&!?- Koy Manageimenl Porsennel are mor fo! ded.

Particulars

Jontventure/ Associates

Entity in which KMP exercise
significant inflluence

Key Managerial Peraannel / (lose
member(s) of KMP

March 31, 2uz5

March 31, 2024  March ga, 2uzs March 31; 2u2q4  March 31, zuzs March 31, 2024

Transactions during the year

Loan and Advance given
Disomz Duellers LLP
Shysceaper Care Toint Ventys
Radgum Realtors Private Limited
Admera Lo Realty Private Limitad

Laans and depasits taken
Partum Realtors Private Limit=d

Attarchand Trading Con

Toans and deposils repaid
Rangulnily Realty Private Limited

Loan and Advance repaid
Redgum Reattars Privale Limited
Dreamz Dwellars LLP

B

Manprit Real Estate Private Limited

Preference shares issued
Mr. Baman Trand

Mr. Peicy Choslbry

Mr. Chandiedh Mehia

Rent income

teate Limitad

Sale of matervial
- Realry Private Limited

TInterest expense
Chardresh Mebita Family Trust
Sang Realty Private Limiled

Purchase of material
Sanguinity Bealty Frivate Limfted

Revenue from projects
Rangeinily Realty Private Limited

Sale of Flat
Chandresh Mehta Family Trust
Mr. Ssfal Soipta

Reimbursement of expenses from
Kapstone Cimst webione Private Limitsd

Relmbursement of expenises to
Mr. Boman Trand

Mr, Chantie
Mr, Derey Chawdhny
Banguinily Realty Privats Limited

vy Private LimTed

¢ Property Developers Private Limited

cidge Tntarmalional Schaol

2691
1,783

21

1350
236

w

3,786 - -
112 z =
a7 - -
1350 = *
29 3 -
559 * -
24 3 =
- - 18
- - 18
= - 18
5 =
8o = =
63 - -
7 = -
193 = =
415 = .
= (i1} -
- 6 a
= = 13
- 5 &
6o - -




e) Details of transactions and balances wilh related parties (Continuad)

Entity in which KMP exercise Key Mansgerial Personnel / Close

Rarieulase Jeintventure/ Assscistes significant influence member(z) of KMP

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  March 21, 2uoe;  March 31,2024  March 3y, 2e25  March 2, 3054

14 Purthasz of TLR

Partiem Resftorz Private Limited . _ 1755 . - .
15 Rentexpenses
Rustomjea Kanwledga ity Privale Limiled - B 36 = - =

16 Cost of land, development rights and related expenses

Mr. Boman Teand - . - - 4 g

Mr., Chasdiesh Melila = = = < = [

Mr. Pasiy Chowithey - . g . . o
17 Interest income

Tireames Dweliers LLP = - - a0 - -

Kapstone Cx ttons Private Limite 2,001 S % S Z e

Sweety Property Devetipers Private Limiled = = 2 27 = s
18 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Bustem Irani Foundation - = 5 31 = .
19 Fmployee stock option

Rapstone Canstrictions Private Limited 459 224 > = = =
20 Advance receivad

Chan dresh Mehts Family Trust . . gz ; _ )

Mr. Sajal Gupls - - - - 7 -
21 Advance refunded

Kapstone Constrortions Private Limited - af 3 = > =
22 Service Rendered lowards Property Mansgement

Paitum Realtors Privale Limited - - - 21 - -

Banguinity Bealty Private Limited i = = &2 = .

Kapstone Constructions Privale Limited = q1 - - = -
23 Payment to Landowner

M Boman reni - = - - - a0

Mr. Peogy Thow dhry o % - £ 233
24 Purchase of Land

Mr. Poman Trani 5 . : 3 553 =

Mt Persy Chawdhry . 5 = _ P .

Mrs. Arnavaz 8 Chowdhry - - E = 1,514
25 Guaranices given

Kapatone Constructions Privale Limited 15,3000 = = = = =

Redgum Realtors Private Limited 2500 7,800 - - - -
26 Legal & professionzal expenses - License Fees

Mr. Bosman [eani - - = - gu3 ”

27 Legal & professional expenses - License Fees (Prepsid)
Mr, Baman lani . _ " - sRo :




) Delails of transsctions and balances with related parties {C

a )

Particulars

Jointventure/ Assnciales

Entity in which KMP exercise
significant influence

Key Manzagerial Personnel / Close
memhber(s) of KMP

Mareh 31,2035  March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

March g, 2025  March 71, 2024

Balances as ot the end of the year

1 Loans receivable
Megacarp Conttructians LLP
sperty Desebopert Privale Limited
Devrloperz Privale Limited
Dieamz Duwallare LLP
im Realtors Private Timited
& Liire Realty Private Limited
b yscraper Care fobnt Venlure

2 Unsecurad loans payahle
Mr. Boman Trani
Mr. Peiey Chowdliny

3 Security depusits given luwards rented premises
Ructomjng Knowledge City Private Limitad

4 Interest receivahle on debentures
Kapatung Constractlons Pevate Limiled

5 Trade Fayahle
Ranguinity Realty Puivate Limit=d
Mr. Beaman Irand
Mr. Chendvesh Mehta
Mr. Perey Chowilhry
Mre Arnaaz § Chowthry
Fartum Resllors Private Limited
Rustomjee Cambridge Tntsrnational Sshool

6 Investment in Debentuce & Preference Shares
Bapetine Construetions Peisale Limitad

7 Advances for supply of goods and services
Rustomjae Acadeiny For Glitia] Career Private Limited

8 Trade reccivahles
Dresmiz Dwellers LLP
Koprtone Constritions Private LimTied
Fartum Beallors Privale Limited
Ranguinity Realty Privale Limited
Faren Builteell Private Liseited

Rustomize Cambridge International Schaol

g Debentures Payzhle
Kapelons Conslructions Private Limited

z,611 2631

o742 Ll =S

154 36

anB Lt

=9
1

104 104

40 7
15 70
47 2

._
o
[- -

gt =

210 =
3,526 &
3,05 2




10

12

13

16

d)

Particulars Jointventure/ Asvociates E"ﬁg;:i:ﬂ;tim:t:“Lu KcyMt:;?:;l aI(E; r:.‘;;;;] Filon
er o
March 31, 2025 March g1, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Security deposits taken towards renfed premises

Russtomiee Cambrilge Titepnational Sboal -
Parsn Builtwell Private Limnited »
Advance from customers

Chandresh Mohts Family Trust -
M. Sajal Gupta s
Interest receivahie an deposits

Krishiks Devrlopers Private Limited 21
Sweety Prog =
Dirams Duwslle %
Shyweraper Car =
Other receivable

Kapttane Contractlone Privabe Limited o5t
Dreamz Dweliers LLP -
Parsn Bulltieel] Private Limited 5

Rustomjee Cambridge Internali :
Sun v Realty Privale Limited e
Mr, Boman Irani =
Mr, Chandresh Mehta "

Guarantecs given

Kapatone Constiietions Prival o om=10
Partum Realtnrs Privale =
Redgum Realtors Privale Limited 2390
Other pavable

Kagstone Constructions Private Limited gaR
Mr. Boman Tiand .
Mr, Peooy Cliowilliry =
Preference shares

Mr. Boman Trani .
Mr. Percy Chowatliry .
Mr. Chandresh Mehta =

Transactions and putstanding balances with Non-executive Directors

March g1, 2023

Transaclions during the year
Direclors sitting fres and commission 71

Quistanding balances

Direclurs sitting fees and commission 45

= 25 25 >
= ple] 10 -
+ 303 210 -
z 3 = ¥
26 - - 5
= = a5 2
- - 2y -
& 2 = i
433 “ z :
- < 2g =
= 47 42 &
= i a5 -
- 1 1 -
= % - 126
- = - 114
12.340 - = =
- - 7H00 -
2500 - - =
1,146 - - %
- - - a7
3 “ = 18
= - - 18
- - ; 18
March 31, 202y
57
45

Terms and Condition
Transacti

Quslstar are insecured and gepagable in sash.

Loan to relaied parties are interest frez evoeplloan ta Dreamz Dwellors LLP ol 27 sh
prejoial to the company's inler=st.

inary cowrsz of business and on nocmal terms and conditt

st term in nature, The purposs for which lnang are given (Futherance of Dusiness? are not considered

349
233

18
18
1B
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Keystone Realtors Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 58 - Business Combinations

(a)

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(b)

Summary of acquisition

Business Combination in financial year 2023-24 : Acquisition of Real Gem Buildtech Private Limited

On November 6, 2023, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
in Real Gem Buildtech Privale Limited (RGBPL). The acquisition b

Kingmaler Developers Privale Limited (KDPL) acyuired 100% stake
as been accounted as a business combination using the acquisition

method of accounting in accordance with Ind AS 103 'Business Combinations’. The purchase price has been provisionally allocated to the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on the estimated fair values at the date

the fair value of the net assets acyuired has been allocated to goodwill. The Group believes that the information provides a reasonable

of acquisition, The excess of the purchase price over

basis for estimating the fair values of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities, but the potential for measurement period adjustments

exists based on the Group's continued review of matters related to the

allocation not later than one year from the acquisition date.

Details of purchase consideration, net assels acquired and goodwill are given below:

acquisition. The Group expects to complete the purchase price

Purchase consideration

Particulars 2023-24
Cash Paid 23,142
Total purchase consideration 29,142
Assets and liabilities recognised as a result of acquisition

Particulars 2023-24
Assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 257
Cash and bank balances 4,307
Trade receivables =
Inventories 191,235
Other current and non-current assets (financial and non-financial) 49,317
Liabilities Assumed

Borrowings (42,110)
Trade payables (13.557)
Deferred tax liability (2,601)
Other liabilities (194,051)
Net assets acquired/(liabilities assumed) (7,103)
Calculation of goodwill

Particulars 2023-24
Consideration transferred # 23,142
Less: Net identifiable (assets)/liabilities acquired 7,103
Goodwill/ (Capital reserve) 30,245

# inchiding deferred consideration of INR 6,500 payable for acquisition out of which INR 4000 (March 31, 2024: INR 2500) paid post

March 31, 2024.
Acquired receivables

The gross contractual amount of the acquired receivables represent the fair value. There are no loss allowances on the acquired

receivables,

Accounting policy choice for non-controlling interest

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in acquired entitities either at the fair value or at the non-controlling interests
proportionate share of acquired entity's identifiable net assets. This decision is made on an acquisition to acquisition basis. The Group
acquired three subsidiaries during the period. The Group elected to recognise the non-controlling interest at its proportionate share of the
acquired net identifiable assets,

Purchase consideration - cash outflow/ inflow

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary
Cash consideration 23,142
Less: Deferred Consideration oulstanding as on march 31, 2024 # 4,000
Less: Balance acquired

Cash & cash equivalent 4,307
Net outflow of cash on acquisition date (14,835)
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Hrpstone Reallors Tlinlied

Nutes to the Consoliduted Finuneial Statements 25 at and far the Year snded Mar=h g1, 2025
(Al mivssenits In INR lokh, unless otherwise stated)
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Kepstone Realioes Limited
Nutes to the Consaliduted Finsnelsl Statemente as at nnd for the Year ended March 31, av2g
(AL ot In INT Lakh, nadess athcruiase staled)
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Keystone Renltars Limited
Notes to the Consellduted Finnnctal Stateracnts as atand for the Yeur ended March 31, 3085
CAll sincunty in INR lakh, nolees otherwise stated)
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Keysbong Roallnrs Limbod
Nites tn the Consalidaied Finnncial Statesicnts as at and for the Year ended March 91, 3003
(AL womsrits In INR Iakh, andesy stherwlog stated)
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Heystime Resbors Eimidid

Nusles to the Canaotidated Flinancial Stateacnts as st and for the Year ended March 41, anag
(AL sovnincts in INR Iakh, unloss allierw e stated)
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Keystune Realiars Linbted
Nutes to the Consalidated Finaneial Statements as st and for the Year ended March 01, 3023
(AN sonwsits [n INR lakh, wiless atharvwlse stated)
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Ko gatone Renltors Limited
Notes to the Comsillibuted Finsoeial Stalemwnts an at and for the Yesr ended March 31, 2005
(ALl aresnts in INR bukch, unbess atherwise stated)

Note 61 - Dividend
The Boand of Divectirs bz peocminended = finad disibomd of INB 250 pec [l pald-up squity shass of |N4 30/~ 3ch 1 2. 45% of face wadun of squity dlisred fiur the Bnonclal year sndedd March 31, sug, sl lo
apprenal ef the harelwbders in the snauing Anouad Geonere Macting of the Compuig.

Note 62 - Additlenel Regadatony Information

1} Detalls of Beoanl property held
Ns pvwmmiBinngs Jearvs beowrn Bbtialnd o or are pending sgaingt the g fnr bediliog basamd poopery urider the Benomd Trassectione Frobiidibon} At 1588 {45 oli988% w? Rusbes s thersunder.

1) Burrsing scoured sgeinst current assets

The Tronps haa s renelngs fromn Banks s B tads InotBabions on the beels of seowrity of swrrent sesets, alsa vofier note 53, Hossever, thare Bre 1o cogutimmients of Tling quarber by estorns or stabonm b5 »ith banks
2 et U bevents of pelirvaiit sy i et

i) Wibfnl D Faoslter
The Tromip has s hevn do lornd s willil defiaolter by ang bank or Brsecdal bl ofio or greermmenl o any goermmenl sulbordly.

1) Relutionsliip with strnck off eunspanies
The e fiaz ao irues o s with the oot vk off wdes Sumnpeios Aol song or Compeier Aol 1080,

v} Connsplisnee with suimhe s of layers of conipanies
The Frmoup has gl ioed withy thie poder of Loveres pros sl under the Sompanien Aot s,

wif Tennglicoes with appresed seheaefsd of arreogements
The TGrop kaz mat eniersd fnto any scheme ol srvangement which bas an sceemating impast on current ar preioas fnania] yeee [pefer nots 20).

vil) Uthisxtiin af barrowed funids and share prembom

b bbins, thie e hiam moladvanoed ot bt ur Emessiod funds o any ctbor porwsnls} ar 2otitfes). inclading fovign el (e e sith the wodersbaoding that the TotevmeTiany shalls
I Yo ur Tavest in ol persons =t zobihe Wentified in smy pusnier silsbes o by or on bebadf of the com ey (1Hmets Resefictaic or
b pre e any goarantee. smurity or the ik b oy ot bebalful Une ullimate beefiarie

Nuowe of Intermedinry At of  [Date of lonn Nuoe of n1lmsie beneiicary Avmmnnt further
loan glven |givento Jumned by
Iritw rvnediary Trtermediney ta
the ultimate
heneficlary
Year ended liamh M.205

8,78 [Varkous dates Reymenilomn Rasbiorn Pivate Limied ERLH
5290 [ Varlons deten Heegwtomn lafesstructurs Privale Limited 5030
The qeatifie] ineitalmad boyers 3300 | Varves dates Loiprrial Tnfradevelopers Private Limiael ARED
The qualified it Tutioal buees 353 |Variias deles Keoky Renltrs Privals Limiled afge
The quakified imtitutional buyers 28 | Varines dateg Kehlue Remltors Privale Limited 2mR
The qhintifte! tustitothmad bisers 2120 |Vardous dates Eislloaen Raalty Brivate Limitod 50
e cquestilion) drastiboibiona) buyers 1500 | Varives detes Rustomjes Fealty Priveta Limiied e
The quualified iyt buyers 27 |Viriuus dater Keywarth Msdbors Privale Limited o7t
The squalifioc) it bugers 0 { Varios dates Rodjuin Resallirs Private Limited 900
The quialified funtihutiona buyen 240 | Visrions dstes Pasahliyintaya Nigar Devebopent Privabe Linitsl £
The quatified instiotuel buyers 501 | Vasious dazes Kezmarvel Realtone Private Limbted 501
[ The yesTified Tt uth aml bupees o6 | Ve dater Flagrant) Reslinrs Private Limbn] e
Tz qan Hifinch sttty el Voaipre 335 | Varioas dales Raj Tkl Esguerts Private Limiled o
The qeslified ipatitotivnsal bayere 139 | Varioos detes Mirahite Resaliiirs Prinatz Limited 170
T oanlifion§ it i tival hanere 14 | Variong dates Enticier Reallor Private Liniled 164
The.queiified Trstiinitymal Yopvers 2 {Various dles Xerllent Roalty Privele Limited 52
The quetified Tustituthml Taners 50§ Varbuos dates Eryedinia Rowitors Private Limite] 59
The quadifiod Dt it tiomal boiwes 41 | Verius dates Fory Galawy Romllors Prbvate Limited 44
The qualified inctitat bl biners a1 |Varkous diler Firnstons Devwlogeess Privale Liniited 21
(The queel iR .pma. H BT 20 {Varivus dater Krywvita Rualbors Privele Livaite] 0
10 | Varivws dates Nouregl Develigers Privste Lindivd 10
10 | Warhns dules Haybeiglls Rumlines Private Lisaiied 16
3 |Various dotey Koymoe Ramllors Privats Liniled 2
B . Nenember o, | Peal Gom Dulldie b Feivate Limiied | T
A Mok it 2023 | OrowmzDwelees LLP i 3786

) Urmdleclosed Tnesime
Thees 12 o income serresdernd or dinedosad 2z e during the carrent ot preview yvar in the tax asewments inder the Ineme Tax Aot 1y, that bas ot beem reccrded I the breoks of seonint,

ix) Delnils of crypte currency or virtos! enrvency
The Tronp bas wor fraded o ieested Tn ooy pli currency or vicus! correney Suring the curvenl or previo vosr,

) Vahuntion ol FPEE, intangibl 2 a5 Eriestniont iotwparty
Tl e bias ot e alusd e gty pland and sguipoesnt or inbaagible secls o botl duriog the cuvent or oo year.

xi) Utilisation of o rrowhigs svailed oo henke and Rosocta] et Botlong
Thie Borr s «bbwiied by the Gremige froo buedks st fosncial inetitotiens s been appiied for the porpeses for which sach boess wers was tbon,

il Reglstratton of ehiwrges or satisfact lon with Reglstiar of Companiez
There 2re ne chiavger or sthaetion which ars yot o be regidered with the Regietrar of Compaoies beyund the stalulory perind,

i1 Title deed of s ahle propreties

Thi title Foel of all thie oo ahle prvspertion father thai progertios whss the Trp I the lesses and thie Jeass agrosenlz are duly sesoted in Geour of the lesser), 22 dislmed in note 3, note § aml nole 510 the
womserth it} Gmancial slabemernts. are bedd in the nae of e Sivap,

Noste 63 - it trail

Az per e et of Tube 3 8 of the Siopaiion Dheinbad Rules 204 The Soap, it Tute e feinifly contonTled = il joink ventiones s e sccsanting sefvware for puiniainiog it Tods
of weoonnt wihich have 3 fesbure of e ﬂfu;ll.uiil.Enﬂfd!l1-;)Eln!'ll\‘udﬂmhwoprnl-d&W&:mﬁ:nﬂuhulhwhmw&dﬁl&:nﬂmw Inease of ong of e sccvanting
wiftmaze for sortain brspu time. For clussges usde Whrungh speific aocwss snd for direct detubuss charges. Other than festonces oot sbove, there are 0o instances of aoehil trail S ture being not Gropersd
with ae nut preseoved Fy the Sreup 22 por the stadotory reguirmments for reeond sedesthin.

NMrte 54 - Ad) amcans in Finescial sistement are smoded off to & bhs At bk poapding off porm srm seqearted 25 ®
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